— | 8
ZN CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public

Decision Session - Executive Member for Transport and Planning

To: Councillor Dew (Executive Member)

Date: Thursday, 13 September 2018

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039)

AGENDA

Notice to Members — Post Decision Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on this
agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by 4:00pm on
Monday 17 September 2018.

*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a previous call
in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not subject to the
call-in provisions. Any called in items will be considered by the Customer
and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management Committee.

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Tuesday 11 September
2018.

1.

Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to declare:

e any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests

which he may have in respect of business on this agenda.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve and sign the minutes of the decision session held on 16
August 2018.

www.york.gov.uk



Public Participation

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have registered
to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is 5.00pm on
Wednesday 12 September 2018. Members of the public can speak on
agenda items or matters within the Executive Member’s remit.

To register to speak please contact the Democracy Officers for the
meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda.

Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be
filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered public
speakers who have given their permission. The broadcast can be
viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if recorded, this will be
uploaded onto the Council’s website following the meeting.

Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors and
Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This includes the
use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone wishing to film,
record or take photos at any public meeting should contact the
Democracy Officers (contact details are at the foot of this agenda) in
advance of the meeting.

The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a manner both
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all those present. It can
be viewed at

https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol for webcasting
filming and recording of council meetings 20160809

Thoresby Road — Speed Management Scheme (Pages 9 - 18)

This report presents options to address concerns about the speed of
vehicles on Thoresby Road.

York Outer Ring Road Improvements - Proposed (Pages 19 - 72)
A1237 Monks Cross Junction Upgrade - Report
on Public Engagement

This report updates the Executive Member on the preliminary design
and public engagement processes in relation to the proposed upgrade
of the A1237/Monks Cross Link junction (the “Monks Cross junction”)
and seeks his approval to proceed with the detailed design and
construction stages of the scheme.


http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809

10.

Advertising Boards ("A" Boards) on the Public (Pages 73 - 96)
Highway

This report provides an update on the policy which was introduced in
February 2017 which prohibits the placement of advertising boards and
similar materials on the public highway within the Business
Improvement District (BID) boundary of the city centre.

Hempland Avenue - Speed Management (Pages 97 - 108)
Scheme

This report presents options to address concerns about the speed of
vehicles on Hempland Avenue.

Public Rights of Way - Proposed improvements (Pages 109 - 136)
to the rights of way network in vicinity of
Knapton

The Executive Member is asked to consider a report that proposes
iImprovements to the rights of way network in the vicinity of Knapton.

Micklegate - Changes to Traffic Regulation Order  (Pages 137 - 152)

The report asks the Executive Member to consider options for closing
Micklegate Bar to Motor Vehicles.

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the Local
Government Act 1972.



Democracy Officers:

Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook (job share)

Contact details:
e Telephone —(01904) 551031
e Email catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk and louise.cook@york.gov.uk
(If contacting by email, please send to both Democracy Officers named
above).

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officers responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak;

Business of the meeting;

Any special arrangements;

Copies of reports and;

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
HMBAESPNESIRMEESE (cantonese)
«2 B2y AR S ST (R (TS AT | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e ) G T e (Ura)
T (01904) 551550



mailto:catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk
mailto:louise.cook@york.gov.uk

Page 1 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for
Transport and Planning

Date 16 August 2018

Present Councillor Dew

16. Declarations of Interest

The Executive Member was asked to declare, at this point in the
meeting, any personal interests, not included on the Register of
Interests, or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests
that he might have had in respect of business on the agenda.
He confirmed he had none.

17. Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session of the
Executive Member for Transport and Planning held
on 12 July 2018 be approved and signed by the
Executive Member as a correct record.

18.  Public Participation

It was reported that there had been four registrations to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Three residents spoke in relation to agenda item 5
(Consideration of Two Residents’ Parking Petitions) with regard
to the petition calling for the introduction of residents parking on
Main, First and Second Avenue in Heworth.

Gareth Simpson, a local resident, spoke in objection to the
introduction of residents parking on Second Avenue. He stated
that there were sufficient places to park on both Second and
Main Avenue and there was a clear consensus from residents
against residents parking. He expressed the view that if it was
introduced, people would have to look for parking places on
neighbouring streets making traffic busier around the primary
school, it could also lead to problems for people, especially the



19.

Page 2

elderly, accessing Heworth’s local amenities if there was
nowhere to park.

Amy Reynolds, another local resident, also spoke in objection to
the introduction of residents parking on Second Avenue . She
pointed out that the petition represented the views of only a
small minority of households and questioned whether all
residents had been aware of the petition. She also expressed
concern that restricting parking could threaten the thriving
community of independent cafes, shops, post office and
amenities in Heworth Village.

Kerry Gregory, a local resident read out a statement on behalf
of the lead petitioner explaining their reasons for putting the
petition forward. It stated that, as commuter parking increased,
residents found it increasing difficult to park near their homes
and sometimes had to park on neighbouring streets; this caused
problems especially for older residents. It raised concerns that
cars were sometimes parked for a number of days without being
removed and expressed the view that there was a need for a
more coordinated residents parking scheme.

Brian Bartle, of Bartles Ltd Chartered Surveyors, addressed the
Executive Member in relation to agenda item 8 (Submission of
Definitive Map Modification Order). He spoke on behalf of local
objectors of the proposed change of Grange Lane to Rufforth
Airfield from footpath to restricted byway. He stated that there
was no unequivocal evidence of the route in the past, plans had
never been found, there was no evidence of users and the
routes highlighted were under two different names with different
widths, the route did not connect highways and there was no
benefit to changing the status of this route.

EPetition: Approve More Houses for Lower Income
Residents in York

The Executive Member considered a report which outlined the
proposed approach to an EPetition entitled ‘Approve more
houses for lower income residents in York’ which was submitted
by a local resident on 12 April 2018. The petition called for the
council to adjust planning rules to restrict the amounts of luxury
flats and student accommodation in the city and focus more on
housing mix for affordable housing and family homes.



20.

Page 3

The Development Officer drew the Executive Member's
attention to the written representation which had also been
submitted by the petitioner stating that while he was pleased
with some of the steps the council was taking, he outlined his
continued concerns about housing mix and proposed that the
council implement a local scheme to promote local needs first in
terms of affordable housing.

She advised that officers recognised that issues raised in
petition had close links to Local Plan which had been submitted
for independent examination and its contents and evidence
base were being considered. She explained that, in line with
national policy, the local plan sought to provide sufficient homes
to meet the city’s needs both in quantum and the types and mix
of properties that were to be delivered. The issue had been
considered in detail through the evidence base underpinning the
plan and in the strategic housing needs assessment and that
suggested that there was a continued need for both family
housing and affordable homes as well as mix and range of
properties.

The Executive Member acknowledged that issues raised in the
petition were ones that were being dealt with through the local
plan examination and the inspectors would be considering
relevant policies to this petition, its evidence base and any
consultation comments previously raised in relation to housing
need, affordable housing and types and mix of properties. He
noted that if the inspector made any changes to the policies, the
council would then undertake consultation on those changes so
there would also be further opportunity for members of public to
comment.

Resolved: That the petition be noted.

Reason: Itis considered that the policy position in the
emerging Local plan, which is based on a sound
evidence base, will guide development and inform
the consideration and determination of planning
applications.

Consideration of Two Residents Parking Petitions: Main,
First & Second Avenues and Balmoral Terrace

The Executive Member considered a report which
acknowledged receipt of two petitions and proposed appropriate
action in each case. The first petition called for the council to
consider establishing a suitable residents only scheme parking



Page 4

in Main, First and Second Avenue, Heworth and the second
petition asked the Council to list Balmoral Terrace for
consultation about becoming a priority residents parking zone.

The Council’s Traffic Team Leader drew the Executive
Member’s attention to the list of written representations received
which included comments received from local residents in
objection to the petition relating to Main, First and Second
Avenues. He explained the process for dealing with petitions
requesting residents only parking schemes..

Officers confirmed that the reference to the Danesmead Close
item in paragraph 3 of the report was an error and not part of
the recommendation.

The Executive Member acknowledged the comments included
in the written representations and those made by the three
speakers under public participation. He agreed that both areas
(Main, First & Second Avenues and Balmoral Terrace) should
be added to the residents parking waiting list so that an
investigation and full consultation could be carried out with local
residents about options for any future scheme.

Resolved

(i)  That with regard to the petition relating to Main, First and
Second Avenues, option 2 be approved and the streets be
added to the residents parking waiting list and an
investigation and consultation about any future scheme be
carried out when they reach the top of the list.

Reason: Because this will respond to residents’ concerns
in the order they are raised and can be progressed
depending on funding available each year.

(i)  That with regard to the petition relating to Balmoral
Terrace, option 4 be approved and the area be added to
the residents parking waiting list and an investigation and
consultation about any future scheme be carried out when
it reaches the top of the list.

Reason: Because this will respond to residents’ concerns
in the order they are raised and can be progressed
depending on funding available each year.



21.

22.

Page 5

Strensall to Haxby - Danger Reduction Scheme

The Executive Member considered a report which provided an
update with regard to the investigation into reducing the speed
limit and introducing traffic calming on the rural roads between
Haxby and Strensall, following receipt of a petition. It also
included the results of a consultation exercise with local ward
and parish councillors with regard to the proposed scheme.

The Acting Transport Projects Manager updated the Executive
Member and advised that the investigations and consultation
showed that there were no problems with the road layout, no
accident problem and the speed limit was complied with,
however there was a perceived danger for some more
vulnerable road users. The Executive Member noted that
concern had been expressed about increasing the amount of
street clutter therefore a reduced set of measures was
recommended with supplementary information to be provided
on warning signs referring people to vulnerable road users as
well as refreshed road markings.

Resolved: That option 2 be approved and a reduced set of
measures, as set out in Annex C to the report, be
introduced taking into account the comments from
consultees.

Reason: To highlight the presence of vulnerable road users
and reduce the level of perceived danger for local
residents and other road users.

Consideration of results from the consultation in Sussex
Road and immediate area following a petition received
requesting Residents' Priority Parking

The Executive Member considered a report which provided the
results of consultation undertaken in May for Sussex Road,
Sussex Close and the affected properties which have
frontages/access onto the proposed area following receipt of a
petition requesting residents priority parking.

The Council’s Traffic Team Leader confirmed that the required
50% response rate had not been achieved for the consultation
for the scheme to be taken forward and those responses



23.

Page 6

received showed that numbers for and against a scheme were
very close. Therefore their recommendation was to take no
further action for the reasons set out in the report.

The Executive Member acknowledged that all residents had had
the opportunity to respond to the consultation but that the
response rate had been below the 50% response rate required.

Resolved: That no further action be taken towards the
implementation of Residents Priority parking on
Sussex Road and immediate area and the consulted
area be removed from the Residents Parking waiting
list.

Reason: The required response rate has not been met along
with the close percentage vote received for and
against the scheme.

Submission of Definitive Map Modification Order "The
Council of the City of York Public Footpath, Knapton No.4
(Grange Lane to Rufforth Airfield)"to the Secretary of State
for Determining also requests that the Secretary of State
change the Order Route from Footpath to Restricted
Byway.

The Executive Member considered a report which advised him
that a number of objections had been received to the above
definitive map modification order on the grounds that Grange
Lane was a public road and should properly be recorded on the
definite map as a restricted byway rather than a footpath.

The Definitive Map Officer stated that there was sufficient
evidence to show this route had previously been a road and that
no steps had been taken to remove any existing rights from the
old road.

The Executive Member acknowledged the comments made by
Mr Bartle under public participation and also the comments
submitted by another local resident as a written representation.
He noted that a pack of evidence, including the views of Mr
Bartle and the resident who had submitted a written
representation, would be sent to the Secretary of State for
consideration with the modification order.



Page 7

Resolved: That approval be given to submit the order to the
secretary of state asking that the order be modified
to record the route as a restricted byway. All
evidence and representations received by the
council would be included when the order was
submitted.

Reason: All the available evidence indicates that this route
was a public road. Rights for mechanically propelled
vehicles were removed by the NERC Act 2006.
However, all other public rights for pedestrians,
horse riders, cyclists, and horse and cart remain.

Clir P Dew, Executive Member for Transport and Planning
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.40 pm].



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member for 13 September 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Assistant Director Transport, Highways
and Environment

Thoresby Road - Speed Management Scheme
Summary

1. This report presents options to address concerns about the speed of
vehicles on Thoresby Road.

Recommendations

2. The Executive Member is asked to:

e Approve option 3 - defer a decision pending the implementation of
the parking scheme and refer site back to the Speed Management
Partnership for consideration.

Reason: The parking scheme could have a direct impact on vehicle
speeds along Thoresby Road, potentially leading to increased
abuse of the limit and so should be concluded before the site
IS reviewed again to ensure any scheme to address the issue
Is warranted and can have the desired effect.

Background

3. The Council has previously determined that this location should be a
20mph road.

4. Thoresby Road was referred to the Transport Projects team for
investigation via the Speed Management Partnership following a review
of speed data. The speed limit on Thoresby Road is 20mph. The results
of the speed survey show mean speeds of 21mph which is within
expected tolerances for a 20mph speed limit and 85" percentile speeds
of 25/26mph.



Page 10

Casualty accident records show there have been no injury accidents on
Thoresby Road in the last 3 years.

!

o= S SR S @ e BN T “| LOCATION PLAN

A scheme was developed as shown in Annex A and issued for
consultation. This scheme comprises:

e Installation of a ‘20’ roundel markings at both junctions with St Stephens
Road.

e Installation of six ‘20’ repeater signs to be located on both sides of three
existing lighting columns to reinforce the existing signage.

Estimated cost - £2k
During consultation a concern was raised about the potential impact of
additional street clutter resulting from the proposal additional repeater

signs.

To address this concern alternative scheme options which do not include
additional signing or markings associated with the 20 mph limit were



Page 11

developed. The alternative scheme shown in Annex B was then
developed and comprises:

e Installation of seven full width road humps.

Estimated cost - £41k

Ward Committee Parking Scheme

9.

10.

11.

12.

At the same time as option 2 was being developed a Ward Committee
brief was received by the Transport Projects team to investigate the
provision of a parking bay outside Nos 12-24. The ward reference is WE-
17-25.

The parking bay scheme is to be funded through the Housing Estate
Improvement Programme (HEIP) and there was an urgency to provide an
estimate for a layby before any investigations were undertaken. Officers
provided the estimate based on a layby of 38m length (6 spaces)
between The Reeves and St Stephens Road.

As part of the response to the initial brief ward members were advised of
the speed management scheme and that removing parking from on road
would not be considered supportive in managing speeds along the road.

The Provisional estimate for the parking bay proposal has since been
approved with further investigations and design now expected.

Consultation

13.

14.

15.

Consultation was only undertaken for the option show in Annex A.
Responses are recorded below with Officer responses as required.

Traffic Team Leader: Thoresby Road is not a through route so users will
almost exclusively be residents who are likely to be already aware of the
existing speed limit.

Officer Response: Agreed, the lining and signing scheme may have
minimal impact, but could help to reduce speeds of visitors or delivery
drivers who may not be aware of the speed limit with the existing signing
regime.



Page 12

Options

16.

17.

18.

19.

Option 1: Approve the signing scheme shown in Annex A

Option 2: Approve the traffic calming scheme shown in Annex B and
allocate additional funding to progress the proposal.

Option 3: Defer a decision pending the implementation of the parking
scheme and refer the site back to the Speed Management Partnership
for further review.

If option 1 or 2 are approved they will need to proceed to consultation
with local residents, ward members and other local interest groups. Any
objections to be reported back to the Executive Member for Transport
and Planning for a decision on implementation.

Analysis

20.

21.

22.

The comments from the traffic team are considered to be a fair
evaluation of the proposals outlined in option 1 and the scheme would
increase the number of signs in the area raising concerns about street
clutter. However, the cost is minimal and could be funded from the
2018/19 speed management budget. Whilst the impact on residents'
speed may be minimal, it could serve to reinforce the existing restrictions
and reduce speeds of drivers not familiar with the area.

Vertical traffic calming (option 2) is expensive and whilst it should reduce
the 85" percentile speeds, the already low, mean speeds are unlikely to
be affected. Therefore, officers do not consider option 2 to give value for
money. This option is also not affordable from the 2018/19 budget
allocations. If the Executive Member wishes to take forward the traffic
calming option it would need a new funding allocation this year or would
need to be delayed until funding is available. The introduction of vertical
traffic calming measures is also likely to be unpopular with local
residents and may attract objections.

Option 3 identifies that the parking scheme will have a direct impact on
vehicle speeds along Thoresby Road and allows this to be prioritised
above the speed management scheme. The investigation process and
implementation of the scheme if approved could then be concluded
before the site is reviewed again. This would ensure any speed
management scheme suitably addresses the issues.



Page 13

Council Plan

23.

24.

This section explains how the proposals relate to the Council’s 3 key
priorities, as set out in the Council’'s Plan 2015-19.

Key Priority - a council that listens to residents - to ensure it delivers the
services they want and works in partnership with local communities.

The Speed Management Partnership is based solely on investigating
complaints from residents, all options presented include consultation with
local residents and their representatives to ensure their views are leading
the decisions made. The recommended option also prioritises the
community lead scheme to ensure the two work elements provide the
best results.

Implications

25.

The following implications have been considered:

. Financial — There are no financial implications, unless the Executive
Member chooses to approve Option 2, which would exceed the
budget available.

. Human Resources (HR) - There are no HR implications.

. One Planet Council / Equalities - There are no One Planet Council /
equalities implications.

. Legal - There are no legal implications.

. Crime and Disorder - There are no crime and disorder implications.

. Information Technology (IT) - There are no IT implications.

. Property - There are no property implications.

Risk Management

26.

27.

In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the following
risks associated with the recommendation in this report have been
identified and described in the following points, and set out in the table
below:

Authority reputation —This risk is in connection with the public perception
of the Council as the recommended scheme doesn’t progress the speed
management scheme in 18/19 and is assessed at 8.



Page 14

Risk Category | Impact |Likelihood | Score

Organisation/ Minor | Unlikely 8
Reputation

28. Itis recognised that the recommendation in the report delays the
implementation of any speed management scheme. However, it is
considered more important to prioritise the ward scheme to ensure all the
residents’ needs are met and as the risk is minimal it is considered
acceptable.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Ben Potter Neil Ferris

Engineer Corporate Director of Economy and Place

Transport Projects

Tel No. 01904 553496 Report , |Pate 05.09.18
Approved

Wards Affected: Westfield

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes
Annex A — Option 1 — signing and lining scheme
Annex B — Option 2 - traffic calming scheme

List of Abbreviations Used in this Report
CYC - City of York Council

HEIP - Housing Estate Improvement Programme
SMP — Speed Management Partnership



Sign Detail K? '20' Roundel Detail

AINSTALL '20' \//
ROUNDEL
> MARKING
EXISTING '20' ;

A
oY
REPEATER | &% \0

Sign Reference 300mm repeater

@@ﬁ

Hg\ght 300mm S | G N s
z20mn FINSTALL 20 % — —
e REPEATER SIGN A <
* Area reduced for rounded comers. ON BOTH SlDES
OF LC5 &
N v
g O
B ¢ ® /7
1 < N 4.3m
- < ° Q/%
) &
o . QX
Q2 >Z
Scale:200
\J} d ) U :
[—EXISTING 20 |
REPEATER SIGN i Q ><
\_o
—EXISTING 20° N\ [ __ >
REPEATER SIGN — FEXISTING 20 . INSTALL 20
[ = REPEATER SIGN / ROUNDEL
/ \U MARKING
I )Y
7 \ N
’ —INSTALL 20
REPEATER SIGN
~-—INSTALL 20' I B— ON %?:TC?;DES 4
= =IT7 —___ |REPEATER SIGN

ongemsess | | R
2 //( " OPTION 1

Ic CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818'

= Ty oF I INITIAL ~ [REV AMENDMENT DATE ThOI"E’SIOy Rd SMS 1718
BYORK el

Signing and Linin
:T-'.“Mmmu].ﬁhmmmmn SCALE mso |A3 g Q g
E oA DEC 2007 TP/170073/0PTO01

L'\DOCUMENT\Transport Pro Jects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accesslbility Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1510360 Thoresby Rd 20limit\Drawings\Thoresby Rd_option 1 - Signing and Lining.dwg

GT abed


AutoCAD SHX Text
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
ST STEPHEN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
202 to 212

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
122 to 132

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
101 to 111

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
10 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
THORESBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
106 to 116

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
94 to 104

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
70 to 80

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
42a

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
2 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
65 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
ST STEPHEN'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
18 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
54 to 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Rodmar

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Holmstein

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Magnus

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
131a

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
31c

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
77a & b

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
154 to 164

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
90 to 100

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
THE REEVES

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
16.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
THORESBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
31d

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
Energise

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
66 to 76

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
REEVES

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
THORESBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
ST STEPHEN'S SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
CORNLANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
82 to 92

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
14 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
33 to 43

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
85 to 91

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
38 to 48

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Agnar

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
73 to 79

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
14.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
196

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
TITHE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
THE KNOLL

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
Gretter

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
Amor

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
81 to 87

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
THORESBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
ST STEPHEN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
ST STEPHEN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
THORESBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Transport Projects

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
www.york.gov.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
INITIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
AMENDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1510360 Thoresby Rd 20limit\Drawings\Thoresby Rd_option 1 - Signing and Lining.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
AW

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
1:1500

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
DEC 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Thoresby Rd SMS 1718

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Signing and Lining

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
TP/170073/OPT01

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
Sign Detail


This page is intentionally left blank



V% %

"PROPOSED KEY:-
ROAD HUMP
/ )
2 s
) % PROPOSED ROAD HUMP
"PROPOSED Q)

ROAD HUMP

~ /
FPROPOSED OX
» ROAD HUMP

o2 g

d XIANNV

/T abed

\ﬂ7
o
!
\
o\
™
O

\ N
PROPOSED | i 74 S

ROAD HUMP /
PROPOSED . [T 7
——|ROAD HUMP —_— -PROPOSED -PROPOSED
ROAD HUMP / x ROAD wP
@ | / OPTION 2
| 7
Ic CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818'
= Ty oF I INIMAL ~ [REV AMENDMENT DATE ThOI"E’SIOy Rd SMS 1718
HYORK S e
Transport Projects oo 35 SCAE 1500 |A3 oQ umps
£ Dopk Hozd G, dame S, Yok AT DEC 2017 TP/170073/0PT0R

L\DOCUMENT\Transport ProJects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accesslbility Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1510360 Thoresby Rd 20limit\Drawings\Thoresby Rd_option 2 - Road Humps.dwg


AutoCAD SHX Text_236
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
ST STEPHEN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
202 to 212

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
122 to 132

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
101 to 111

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
10 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
THORESBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
106 to 116

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
94 to 104

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
70 to 80

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
42a

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
2 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
65 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
ST STEPHEN'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
18 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
54 to 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Rodmar

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
Holmstein

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
Magnus

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
131a

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
31c

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
77a & b

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
154 to 164

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
90 to 100

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
THE REEVES

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
16.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
THORESBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
31d

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
Energise

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
66 to 76

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
REEVES

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
THORESBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
ST STEPHEN'S SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
CORNLANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
82 to 92

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
14 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
33 to 43

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
85 to 91

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
38 to 48

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
Agnar

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
73 to 79

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
14.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
196

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
TITHE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
THE KNOLL

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Gretter

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Amor

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
81 to 87

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
13.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
THORESBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Transport Projects

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO10 3DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
www.york.gov.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
INITIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
AMENDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1510360 Thoresby Rd 20limit\Drawings\Thoresby Rd_option 2 - Road Humps.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
AW

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
1:1500

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
DEC 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
Thoresby Rd SMS 1718

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
Road Humps

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
TP/170073/OPT02


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19 Agenda ltem 5

COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member for 13 September 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Assistant Director Transport, Highways and Environment

York Outer Ring Road Improvements — Proposed A1237 Monks
Cross Junction Upgrade — Report on Public Engagement

Summary

1. This report is about the design and public engagement of the
proposed upgrade of the A1237 / Monks Cross Link junction (the
“Monks Cross junction”). The report is seeking the Executive
Member for Transport and Planning’s approval to proceed with the
detailed design and construction stages of the scheme.

2. Preliminary design and public engagement processes have recently
been completed and it is now time to conclude the detailed design
and move to the construction stage. This report sets out what has
been achieved over the last few months and asks approval to
progress to the delivery stage.

Recommendations
3. The Executive Member is asked to:

1) Confirm that the results of the public engagement process have
been considered and incorporated in the design where possible.

Reason: To enable the detailed final design of the Monks Cross
junction upgrades to proceed and be completed.

2) Note the general arrangement design for the junction upgrade
and give approval for preparations and implementation of
construction (See Annex 1).

Reason: To enable arrangements to be made to commence
construction of the Monks Cross junction upgrade.



Page 20

3) Note the ongoing acquisition of land and negotiation of terms and
conditions by the Assistant Director Transport Highways &
Environment.

Reason: To enable the acquisition of land in a timely manner in
order to adhere to the York Outer Ring Road (YORR)
programme.

4) Endorse the appointment of the City of York Council’s Delivery
Team for the civil engineering and associated works to undertake
the Monks Cross junction upgrade.

Reason: To enable a timely appointment of a contractor which
eliminates the need to go through lengthy and costly tendering
processes.

Background

4.

In July 2017 City of York Council Executive approved a report
setting out the proposed approach and management of the YORR
Improvement Project. Specifically, the report gave delegation of
operational and detailed decision making for the design and delivery
of the scheme to the Executive Member for Transport and Planning.
Progress has been made over recent months on the scheme with
work commencing on Phase 1 at the A1237/Wetherby Road
junction. Design and development work has also been in progress
on the Phase 2 A1237/Monks Cross Link junction and it is now time
to move to the next stage on this junction. The decisions to be
made by the Executive Member which are relevant at this stage are:

a. Accept that a satisfactory public engagement process
has been held and note the results.

b. Accept the final layout of the Monks Cross junction
upgrade and note that the results of the public
engagement process have been considered and
incorporated in the design where possible.

c. Note the continuing phasing of the programme.

d. Endorse the appointment of the City of York Council’s
Delivery Team to undertake the works at Monks Cross
junction.



Page 21

Running in parallel to the endorsement by City of York Council
Executive, the scheme is being funded through the West Yorkshire
Plus Transport Fund. The fund is administered by the West
Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) and is governed through a
programme management process, see Annex 4. A Final Business
Case for the overall improvement programme was submitted in late
2017. This was accepted by WYCA with a condition that each
individual phase must be submitted separately to secure funding for
the delivery stage. The estimated cost of the proposed upgrade at
Monks Cross at that time was £3.3m.

The project team are currently making preparations to submit a
Final Business Case + to WYCA in September 2018 in order to
secure the estimated £3.3m funding for upgrading the Monks Cross
junction.

Consultation

7.

A public engagement process has been held which commenced on
the 4™ May and which ran to the 15 June 2018.

On the 3" May 2018 letters informing of the public engagement
were sent to:
e Julian Sturdy MP and Rachael Maskell MP
e Councillors Ayre, Boyce, Cullwick, Cuthbertson, D’Agorne,
Dew, Doughty, Douglas, Gillies, Lisle, Looker, Orrell and
Runciman.
e The Parish Councils of Earswick, Heworth without,
Huntingdon with New Earswick and Strensall with Towthorpe.

The following public engagement events were undertaken:

¢ An unmanned display was set up within the reception area of
West Offices from the 4" May for the duration of the
consultation period.

e 2 public engagement events were held at the Monks Cross
Management Suite on the 8" and 22" May 2018 from 13:00
to 18:00 hours with officers from CYC and our design
consultants, Pell Frischmann in attendance. A total of 50
people attended these events.

¢ A designated e-mail address (yorr@york.gov.uk) was
assigned to receive comments from the public. 14 comments
were received.



mailto:yorr@york.gov.uk

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 22

e A Facebook post was made. 76 comments were received with
27 “likes” and 15 “shares”.

o Twitter feeds were posted every day during the public
engagement except the 8™, 15", 16, 22nd 25M 26" and 27
May. 10 comments were received.

e A press release was published on the 4" May as shown in
Annex 5.

A public engagement package, including a questionnaire, was
delivered to a small number of individual residential properties
within the study area on the 4" May 2018.

A public engagement package was also delivered on the 4" May to
businesses in the area (these are listed in the Pell Frischman report
in Annex 8).

A copy of the information provided in these packages comprised the
following:
e A leaflet containing information of the proposals and a map
of the study area (Annex 3).
e A questionnaire and freepost reply envelope.(Annex 3)

This information was also available for members of the public to
pick up at the unmanned display in West Offices mentioned in point
9 above.

All the public engagement information, along with a copy of the
guestionnaire was available online at www.york.gov.uk.yorr .

Responses

15.

16.

17.

105 responses were received, comprising of 5 questionnaires, 14 e-
mails, 76 Facebook posts and 10 Twitter comments.

No direct responses were received from the MPs, Councillors or
from local businesses.

76 respondents replied through Facebook with 27 likes and 15
shares. However, 34 of these comments were socially
unconstructive comments so the total of respondents reduces to 33.
A further 3 respondents offered only unconstructive criticism but can
be taken as objections to the proposals Each response was given a
unique reference number to allow specific replies to be recovered at


http://www.york.gov.uk.yorr/

Page 23

a later date if necessary. All personal details have been removed for
this report in accordance with the new General Data Protection
Regulations.

18. 50 people attended the Monks Cross Management Suite events.
Summary of comments

19 A summary of all the comments, questions and officer comments
associated with points 15 to 18 above are detailed in Pell
Frischmann’s Report on Public Engagement, attached as Appendix
8.

20 96 comments were received from 82 respondents.

21 Unsurprisingly all but 5 of the respondents (94%) were in favour of
carrying out improvements to Monks Cross roundabout. Whilst 94%
of the respondents were in favour of some form of
improvements to Monks Cross roundabout, only 68% expressed a
preference for the specific proposal set out in the public
engagement whose design mirrors the improvements of the
previously upgraded A19 and A59 roundabouts.

22 A number of respondents did comment that other roundabouts
should be done in preference and it would be more beneficial to
give the other roundabouts priority. 8 comments were received for
priority to be given for Haxby, 6 comments for Strensall and 4 for
Wigginton.

23 Valid comments were received enforcing the ideal that pedestrians
and cyclists are at the top of CYC road hierarchy so greater
consideration should be given to pedestrians and cyclists in the
proposed improvements. 5 comments were received regarding the
provision of cycle lanes and 3 comments regarding pedestrian
safety.

24 Other concerns aired included driver habits, road markings, slip
roads, road noise, environmental concerns and a suggestion for an
Outer Ring Road bus route.



Page 24

Conclusion

25

26

27

28

29

In conclusion, most respondents are generally in favour of the
proposals at Monks Cross. A lot of the concerns they raise are
either outside the scope of the scheme or relate to greater traffic
congestion at the Haxby, Strensall and Wigginton roundabouts.
There is a possibility that should traffic flows be improved at Monks
Cross, then congestion at the smaller roundabouts at the Haxby,
Strensall and Wigginton junctions may increase. This issue is not
considered to be a major concern but will be considered when
programming the phasing of the remaining roundabouts.

The dualling of the A1237 YORR is the most popular alternative to
roundabout improvements. This is in line with the CYC long term
aspiration to dual with grade separated junctions but funding issues
rule out this option at present.

The greatest concern of respondents is the issue of merging lanes.
Longer merge lanes would generally be welcomed to allow a
greater throughput of vehicles, but drivers appear to be unsure on
how to use them properly. There are misconceptions with drivers in
both lanes about who has the right of way. A recent application to
the Secretary of State for Transport, asking for approval to allow
some bespoke signing at Wetherby Road roundabout has been
refused. It will be difficult to specifically educate users of the A1237
YORR through the traditional channels so this matter will continue
to be a problem. Merging lanes will disappear if and when dualling
of the A1237 takes place.

Also of concern is the lack of cycle facilities both crossing the
A1237 YORR to allow access into York and on a circular route
around the bypass. Several measures have been incorporated in
the roundabout improvements, but to do anything more would be
beyond the scope of the current project.

There has been criticism of the A59 roundabout design, but in the
main, this is in relation to the merging lanes arrangement
mentioned eatrlier.



Page 25

City of York Council Officer Recommendations following the public
engagement process.

30

31

32

33

It is recommended that the Monks Cross roundabout improvement
proceeds as currently designed as this is the general consensus of
this round of public engagement.

The phasing of the remaining roundabouts should consider the valid
comments made about the three smaller roundabouts on the ring
road. However in the short term, construction of Monks Cross is
more easily achievable and co-ordinates well with the completion of
the Community Stadium.

As highlighted by the public engagement there are misconceptions
with drivers in both lanes about who has the right of way on merge
lanes and it is therefore recommended that the CYC website and
any future public engagement material includes guidance on how to
use merge lanes.

It is recommended that cycle and pedestrian facilities, which were
highlighted of high importance in the public engagement, are
promoted wherever possible in this and future roundabout
improvement schemes.

Design of Monks Cross roundabout

34

The detailed design for the junction has been completed following
technical review and public engagement processes. Any issues
raised have been considered and incorporated in the design (Annex
1) where possible as follows:

a. proposed provision of a shared pedestrian/cycle route around
the roundabout to enable users to cross at surface level and
also to feed into to future development and improvement
schemes. The Pedestrian/cycle route included the provision of
additional and larger traffic islands for pedestrian safety.

b. Micro simulation modelling has demonstrated that two short
left hand slip lanes are not required. (northbound left A1237
into Monks Cross Link & northbound left North Lane into
A1237).



35

36

37

Page 26

c. The general alignment has shifted slightly north to avoid the
large diameter water main running orbitally around the YORR
at this point.

d. The enforced realignment to the north and increased width due
to pedestrian facilities has led to a larger roundabout inscribed
circle.

The objective of the design is to increase the capacity of the
junction to reduce delay at the projected traffic flow levels and more
closely match the capacity of the section of carriageway between
the roundabouts. In addition the objective is to improve the facilities
for pedestrians and cyclists where it is warranted by the demand.

The proposed design for the Monks Cross roundabout upgrade is
based upon previous improvements to junctions at the A19 and A59
roundabouts i.e. A1237 approaches widened to 3 lanes, A1237
exits widened to 2 lanes, minor arm approaches widened to suit
traffic flows, provision of walking and cycling improvements. The
upgrades will also be constructed to allow for dualling of the
carriageways in years to come.

The upgraded roundabout is projected to deliver reduced journey
times and lower the level of queuing in the area. The overall saving
In journey times in the opening year (2019) between Wetherby
Road and Monks Cross is in excess of 20% and in excess of 10% in
the design year (2036). Note that these projections are based on
the whole route being improved.

Traffic Modelling

38

The proposed junction upgrade is modelled and designed in
accordance with current Department for Transport standards.
Detailed analysis of this modelling is documented in the Final
Business Case approved by the West Yorkshire Combined
Authority (WYCA) in February 2018. This modelling considers the
growth of traffic and ability of the junction to work until 2036. This is
a standard approach.

Current Activity

39

A Final Business Case Submission was submitted to WYCA in
November 2017. This was approved with an estimated scheme
cost of £3.3m for the Monks Cross roundabout upgrade. These



40

41

42

43

44

45

Page 27

costs are currently being reviewed and if within 10% of the
approved figure will be accepted by WYCA.

In accordance with the published City of York Council Procurement
Rules, a direct award of the works package (i.e. civil engineering
work) is proposed to be made to the City of York Council Delivery
Team. The following extract from the Procurement Rules applies in
this case:

“10.4.1In relation to all procurements with a value in excess of £100,000
Officers should, in conjunction with Commercial Procurement, consider
whether there is an appropriate Internal Service Provider, existing Contract or
Framework Agreement or Dynamic Purchasing System which can be used.”

The main considerations for this award are that savings in time and
expenditure can be demonstrated over traditional tendering. Also
the work package is well within the technical capability of the
Delivery Team. Preparations are in progress for the Delivery Team
to commence work in January 2019. This provides an added
advantage in that this team can move sequentially from Wetherby
Road onto Phase 2 Monks Cross without having to mobilise a
separate contractor and involve a number of time consuming
interfaces and start up processes.

Negotiation for land acquisition is currently in progress across the
whole of the YORR improvement scheme. At the Monks Cross
junction, the landowners have been approached to discuss the
transfer of land and negotiations are at an early stage. Land transfer
costs will remain confidential until the completion of the whole
scheme as negotiations elsewhere are still in progress.

The details have yet to be finalised but it is anticipated that the
works will be substantially complete by June 2019 in order to co-
ordinate with the opening of the Community Stadium. An indicative
programme for the whole of the YORR Improvement project is
included as Annex 7.

During this period, although localised disruption during construction
is inevitable, the project team will seek to minimise it as far as
possible by careful programming of the works.

Also, the project team will aim to keep noise, vibration and
disruption to nearby properties to a minimum. The need for any
road closures will be kept to a minimum and will only be required for



Page 28

short periods of time for specific activities such as when tie-ing in
the new surfacing with the existing road. Access for emergency
services will be maintained at all times.

46 A communications plan for the YORR programme has been
prepared and through the measures outlined in this document road
users and residents around the Monks Cross roundabout will be
kept informed about the progress of the work. This will include
signing on the junction approaches and updates relating to site
activities. This will take place before work commences and during
the construction when regular updates will be given. Information will
also be available through the City Council’s website.

Council Plan

47 The YORR Improvement proposals are embedded in the Council’s
Plan 2015-19. The implementation of this programme of highway
improvements will be an integral part of the key priorities to “provide
a prosperous city for all”; to ensure it delivers the services people
want and work in partnership with local communities.

Improvements to transport infrastructure are key drivers for
improved productivity, this in turn leads to economic growth and the
increase in wealth.

48 Residents will be consulted about the junction upgrades to ensure
that consideration of the potential impact of decisions in relation to
health, communities and equalities has been made.

49 Improved journey times will support the following aims from the
Plan:

A city where:
e Local businesses can thrive.
* Residents have the opportunity to get good quality and well
paid jobs.
 Efficient and affordable transport links enable residents and
businesses to access key services and opportunities.
« Environmental Sustainability underpins everything we do.



Page 29

Implications

Financial Implications

50 The estimated cost for the Monks Cross roundabout upgrade

scheme is currently £3.3m. This price includes works, land, fees,
project management and utility diversions. Release of funds from
the WY+TF will be processed through satisfying the Project
Assurance process and approval at meetings of WYCA. The
project team are currently finalising costs with the internal delivery
team to include in the Final Business Case with Costs. This will be
considered in late autumn 2018 by WYCA. A funding agreement
between WYCA and CYC will be drawn up for this purpose.

Human Resources (HR) Implications

51

There are no known human resource implications.

One Planet Council / Equalities

52

The One Planet Council Better Decision Making Tool has identified
the following areas which can be explored further during the design
and development of the whole YORR improvement programme:

e Greater consideration of renewable materials during
construction.

e Consideration about the reduction of crime where subways
are proposed.

e Enhanced Landscaping.

e Use of Public Art to provide attractive spaces for residents.

Legal

53

54

Land is required for the Monks Cross roundabout upgrade. The
Council is actively pursuing the purchase of land for the scheme by
private agreement. Legal Services will provide resources to
process the conveyancing and land transfer agreements.

Currently there are no plans to acquire land through Compulsory
Purchase Order unless as a matter of last resort. However the



Page 30

Council have engaged the services of a law firm to prepare the
documentation for Compulsory Purchase in order that it is prepared
to make an order if necessary. Support from Legal Services will be
required to manage the process.

Crime and Disorder
55 There are no known crime and disorder implications

Information Technology (IT)
56 IT opportunities are currently being considered as follows:

. Implementation of the Smart Travel Evolution Programme
(STEP)

Property

57 Property Services are involved in this project acting as land
managers for the City Council. New pieces of land will be acquired
for the junction upgrades, the title of which will belong to the City
Council. Property Services will also advise and assist the Project
Team in supervising the work of the Land Valuers and Legal Firm.

Other
58 There are no other known implications.
Risk Management

59 In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy the main
risks that have been identified in this report are those which could
lead to financial loss, damage to the Council’s image and reputation
and failure to meet stakeholders’ expectations. Measured in terms
of impact and likelihood, the land acquisition risk has been
assessed at 20. This is classed as Major/Probable and is the most
significant live issue on the project. Other risks have been
assessed at 14 or below. At this point the risks will be monitored
and managed. A risk allowance has been estimated and is included
within the current cost plan for the project. The top two risks
currently affecting this project are:

a. Risks associated with land acquisition. As described above,
there is a high risk that some landowners will be unwilling to



Page 31

sell land to the City of York Council by private agreement, or
in a timely manner. This presents a programme risk
potentially prolonging the time to complete the project. In
order to mitigate this risk, preparation of a CPO in parallel to
land negotiation is proposed as described in paragraph 42
above. A mitigation plan is being developed to enable the
delivery of the scheme without taking the land in the early
stages of construction.

b. Risks associated with utility diversions being more complex
than anticipated. These could lead to programme delays and
have a cost implication. In the case of Monks Cross junction,
early meetings with utility companies are planned to mitigate
these risks.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Gary Frost Neil Ferris

Major Transport Projects Corporate Director for Economy & Place
Manager

Transport Service Report Date 05/09/18

Tel No. 01904 551084 Approved

Melanie Farnham
Senior Transport Project
Manager

Transport Service
01904 553673.

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Financial Implications
Patrick Looker
Finance Manager

Tel N0.551633



Page 32

Legal Implications
Gerard Allen
Senior Solicitor
Tel No. 552004

Property Implications
Nicholas Collins

Head of Asset & Property Management
Tel No. 553360

Wards Affected: Huntington & New Earswick

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Paper to Executive 13" July 2017 — Proposed York Outer Ring Road
Improvements — Approach to Delivery

Annexes

Annex 1 — Proposed General Arrangement for Monks Cross Junction
Annex 2 — Layout presented for public consultation

Annex 3 - Sample consultation package

Annex 4 — WYCA Project Assurance Process.

Annex 5 — Press Release for public engagement process

Annex 6 — Frequently Asked Questions

Annex 7 — Indicative YORR Improvement Programme

Annex 8 - Pell Frischman report

List of Abbreviations Used in this Report

CPO — Compulsory Purchase Order

WYCA — West Yorkshire Combined Authority
YORR - York Outer Ring Road

MP — Member of Parliament

CYC - City of York Council

STEP — Smart Travel Evolution Programme


http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&MId=10188&Ver=4
http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=733&MId=10188&Ver=4

Annex 1

PROPOSED GENERAL ARRANGEMENT MONKS CROSS JUNCTION

2y

b

R

1
Pell Frischmann
Geom Dwr v

GE HOUSE, GIORGE STRLE)

cc abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35

Annex 2

DESIGN PROPOSED AT PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT STAGE

MONKS CROSS ROUNDABOUT

Pell Frischmann

LEEDS CITY REGION
ENTERPRISE
PARTNERSHIP

KEY:

| R

FOOTWAY/ HARD STANDING AREA

TREATEMENT & ATTENUATION DITCH

PROPOSED GRASS VERGE & ACCESS TRACKS.

PROPOSED EMBANKMENT

EXISTING ROADIGARRIAGEWAY EDGE

HEDGE PLANTING

PROPOSED HIGHWAY
WIDENING TO THE
SOUTH-WEST

PROPOSED ACCESS TO FIELD
& MAINTENANCE TRACK

PROPOSED ACCESS TO
MAINTENANCE TRACK

B
i PROPOSED
' HIGHWAY WIDENING
TO THE
SOUTHWEST

PROPOSED BOUNDARY
HEDGE PLANTING

3m GRASSED ACCESS TRACK
FOR SAFE MAINTENANCE OF

DITCH & HEDGE

PPROPOSED DRAINAGE DITCH
TO CONVEY, TREAT &
ATTENUATE ADDITIONAL
FLOWS FROM THE HIGHWAY

\
R B vy e
5 counciL
7
PROPOSED MAINTENANCE West
VEHICLE TURNING HEAD Yorkshire w
Combined
PROPOSED MAINTENANCE Authority
VEHICLE TURNING HEAD
3m GRASSED ACCESS TRACK

3m GRASSED ACCESS TRACK e FOR SAFE MAINTENANCE OF
FOR SAFE MAINTENANCE OF DITCH & HEDGE
DITCH & HEDGE N

PROPOSED DRAINAGE DITCH

TO CONVEY, TREAT &

ATTENUATE ADDITIONAL PROPOSED DRAINAGE

FLOWS FROM THE HIGHWAY DITCH TO CONVEY, TREAT &

ATTENUATE ADDITIONAL
FLOWS FROM THE HIGHWAY
PROPOSED BOUNDARY

PROPOSED BOUNDARY
HEDGE PLANTING

=<2 PROPOSED FIELDVACCESS TRACK GATE
PROPOSED BOUNDARY HEDGE PLANTING
FENCE
| DIRECTION OF FLOW IN DITCHESWATERCOURSES

EXISTING ROUNDABOUT
CENTRE TO REMAIN WITH
CIRCULATORY CARRIAGEWAY

WIDENED TO OUTSIDE

B

PROPOSED MAINTENANCE
VEHICLE TURNING HEAD

PROPOSED ACCESS TO FIELD
& MAINTENANCE TRACK

PROPOSED ACCESS TO FIELD
& MAINTENANCE TRACK

PROPOSED BOUNDARY
HEDGE PLANTING

3m GRASSED ACCESS TRACK
FOR SAFE MAINTENANCE OF
DITCH & HEDGE

PROPOSED DRAINAGE DITCH
TO CONVEY, TREAT &
ATTENUATE ADDITIONAL
FLOWS FROM THE HIGHWAY

PPROPOSED MAINTENANCE
VEHICLE TURNING HEAD




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37

Annex 3

SAMPLE CONSULTATION PACKAGE

.
Construction
Construction at the Monks Cross
roundabout is proposed to begin in January
2019, and is expected to last approximately
nine months. Although localised delays
during construction are inevitable, we will
plan the works to minimise disruption to
local residents, businesses and the
travelling public.

‘We will also keep noise, vibration and
disruption to nearby properties as low as
possible. The need for any road closures will
be kept to an absolute minimum and will only
be for short periods of time for specific
activities such as the final surfacing work.
Access for emergency services will be
maintained at all times.

Further updates relating to site activities
will be provided before work starts and
will continue during the construction of
the project.

The future

Whilst we do not have access to sufficient
funding for dualling York Outer Ring Road
at present, we are ensuring that the current

upgrade d €an ac date dualling
in the future where possible.
West LEGR (7T NEMIT
Yorkshire Rt
Cambined
Futhority

AT

Project aims

The proposal is to upgrade seven
roundabouts on the York Quter Ring Road
(A1237) between Wetherby Road and Monks
Cross junctions. This has been a long held
aspiration for the City of York Council.

The outer ring road is a key road for local
and regional traffic, and is often heavily
congested. We are starting with the upgrade
of Wetherby Road roundabout this summer.
This consultation is asking you about the
proposed improvements to the next
roundabout, at Monks Cross.

York Outer Ring Road has received

£38 million investment through the West
Yorkshire Plus Transport Fund. This is part

of Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership
(LEP) Growth Deal - a £1 billion package of
government investment to accelerate growth
and create jobs across Leeds City Region.

How to find out more
There will be two public exhibitions with
‘Council officers on hand to answer any
questions at:

Management Suite,

Monks Cross Shopping Park

(in the corner by Mew Look), York Y032 9GX

Tuesday 8 May, 1-6pm

Tuesday 22 May, 1-6pm

“You can view the plans and fill in an online
questionnaire at www.york.govuk/yorr and
at West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA

Please let us know your views
Please come to the events, West Offices or
visit the website, and let us know your views
or raise any concerns you have about the

di Monks Cross

prop P

roundabout. You can contact us at:
Customer call centre number 01904 551550
E-mail: uk

On-line york gov.uk/e 1

By Post:

York Outer Ring Road (Major Transport
Projects Team), City of York Council,

West Offices, Station Rise, York YO1 6GA
See Council website for further details
Www.yor uk/fyorr

Please let us have your views by
Friday 1 June 2018

[ /citvofvork []@Cityofvork

Q York Outer Ring Road

Why upgrade the

roundabouts?

Increasing capacity at the roundabouts
will have the largest impact on reducing
journey times.

Issues to address:

= acute congestion

unreliable journey times, encouraging
traffic into the city centre

impact on the city’s economy and
productivity

poor air quality

limited capacity to meet the

housing and employment needs in York's
emerging Local Plan.

proving all seven rour will
ultimately reduce congestion, improve traffic
flows and journey times on the outer ring
road in the north of the city. This should also
encourage traffic away from the city centre
and onto the larger roads where trafficis
more effectively managed.

Construction stages

The upgrades to the seven roundabouts will
be completed in a four year programme. The
‘Wetherby Road and Monks Cross junctions
are being improved first. They are straight
forward designs and the low impact of the
works means we can start construction while
we plan the more complicated schemes. We
will publicise the timetable for delivering
these roundabouts as soon as possible.

EITT sE

YORK

Monks Cross
roundabout

How we're reducing
congestion on
York Outer Ring Road

k-outer Ring Road

Monks Cross
roundabout

Improvements

The blueprint for improving the capacity at all
the roundabouts is based on providing three
lane entries on the Ring Road approaches
to the roundabout and two lane exits,
which will provide an increase in the
junction capacity. These proposals

are similar to those recently
implemented at the A1237/A59
and A1237/A19.

e
2

Proposed
hi_%hw_ayI Additional drainage ditches
e P d boundary
N Topose:
f§¢ D";_zﬂe hedges

North Lane

Monks

3Im grassed
Cross Link

access track

Proposed highw. 7,
F’wideningg il “6‘-3\

Pedestrianand \

. .
cycling improvements
At the Monks Cross junction there are no
existing pedestrian or cycling facilities to
upgrade but we will continue to look out for
all potential opportunities to implement
pedestrian and cycling infrastructure in

the future.



Page 38

Monks Cross roundabout improvements
Public Consultation Questionnaire

We would like your views on our proposed improvements. You can also complete the questionnaire
online at www . york.gov.uk/consultations

Please return this questionnaire to reach us by Friday 1 June 2018

1.

Mame and address
Please provide us with your name and address, or if you would prefer your comments to be
anonymous just fll in your postcode onby.

Mame

Address

Postcode.

What do you currently use York Outer Ring Road for?
[please tick all that apply)

DBusinE:s DCnmmuthg |:|5hup|:|in,g |:| Leisure

How do you normally travel on the route? (tick all that apply)
[Jcar [Jcycie GEL [HGw

Uother

Do you think the scheme will reduce conjestion and improve traffic flow?

D'fea |:|Nn

What should we know?
Is there anything that you feel we should be aware of when designing the scheme?
[for example local knowledge, road safety or environmental concerns)

Q York Outer Ring Road

Annex 3



Page 39

Working method

We expect to undertake the majority of the work "off-line” i.e off the carriageway, during the working day,
with night time working restricted to the occasional closures for tie-ins to the existing carriageway. We
will also be ensuring that during busy trading periods in the Monks Cross shopping centre that our works
do not impede traffic flow.

6. Given the location, are you happy with this suggested working method?

|:|‘|’Eﬁ |:|Nu

7. Any other comments or suggestions?

About you
Please help us to understand the range of people we are consulting by completing the following section.
This information will not be used for any other purposs.

8. Age [ Jis-24 [J25-3¢ [ 3544 [Je5-54 []35-84 [Jo5+ [ |Prefernottosay

9. Gender [ male [ Female [Jprefer nat to say
10. Do you consider yourself to have a disability? (please tick) [ ]ves [Ime
11. Did you attend a consultation event? [please tick) []es [Ime

12. Your interest

By completing this guestionnaire, you have identified that you have an interest in this project. It
wiould help us if you could identify the nature of your interest. [¥ou may tick more than one box)

|:|Business |:| Local business |:| Residential DAgriu.lltural interest
[Jrublic Rights of Way [ |Lleisure  [_|Other

13. Regular email update
It is our intention to publish a regular update on scheme progress via e-mail
Cro you want to be included in the distribution list for future updates

|:|‘|’Eﬁ email address
I:lND

| Return this form to: Major Transport Projects Team, Crty of York Council, West Offices, Station Rise, ¥O1 6GA |

WESt LEEDE CITY RERIDA S CITT &P
NMORTHERM .
D OWERHIOUSE Yorkshire LP i YOR

Bartharity

Annex 3



This page is intentionally left blank



PMO

Promoter

Page 41
Annex 4

WYCA PROJECT ASSURANCE PROCESS

WYCA ASSURANCE PROCESS
Stage 1: Eligibility Stage 2: Development Stage 3: Delivery & Evaluation
Activity 1 Activity 2 Activity 3 Activity 4 Activity 5 Activity 6 Activity 7
FBC with
D D, XD ED . X,
C (- )
/ ]
y
Stage 1, 2 and 3 Guidance and Templates
Monitoring and Reporting, PIMS
Outline Full Full Business Dr{sft Project
X X Case (FBC) Project
£ . ¢ Business Business with final Closure Closure
Xpression o
Case (OBC Case (FBC Report
interest (EOI) ( ) e costs Report €po
Benefits Realisation Plan | | Benefits Realisation Reports
L Outline Full i rcia
EOI Eligibility . . Full
Case Paper Appraisal Appraisal .
Check Report Report Appraisal
P P Report
Control Areas
¢ Risk & Issue Management * Cost Management ¢ Change Control and Exception
* Outputs, Outcomes and Benefits ¢ Planning & Scheduling Management
Realisation

KEY: ' Decision Point . Key Decision Point (CA Approval Required) .Key Decision Point



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43
Annex 5

PRESS RELEASE

Published Friday, 4th May 2018

City of York Council is sharing proposals to cut congestion and
journey times on one of York’s busiest roads.

Residents and businesses have until Friday 1 June to view and
comment on designs to upgrade the outer ring road’s Monks Cross
roundabout.

This will be the second of seven A1237 roundabouts set for major
improvements over the next four years — a total £38 million programme
funded through the West Yorkshire-plus Transport Fund. The council is
starting work on the first junction improvement at Wetherby Road this
summer.

The roundabout upgrades will mean more lanes and space on the
approaches and exits. Where possible the road layouts will be designed
to accommodate the potential future scheme to bring the outer ring road
up to dual carriageway standard. The Monks Cross roundabout
improvement works are planned for early 2019, although some site
clearance work could start earlier.

Clir Peter Dew, Executive Member for Transport and Planning, said:

“We are working to improve traffic flow at the A1237 roundabouts, and
this project will deliver reduced journey times.

“With Wetherby Road work starting this summer, and Monks Cross plans
developing, we’re investing in improvements to the outer ring road.

“We realise that the ultimate improvement would be grade separation at
the busiest roundabouts, but the cost of that would be far in excess of
what is available.

“l encourage residents to take a look at the designs and, of course,
share their views.”

Earlier this year Clir Peter Box, Chair of the West Yorkshire Combined
Authority’s Investment Committee, said the improvements to York Outer
Ring Road will help harness the vast economic potential of York and the
surrounding area.



Page 44
Annex 5

Cllr Box said that the West Yorkshire-plus Transport Fund scheme will
reduce congestion and improve travel flows and will mean local
residents have better connections with employment, training and leisure
opportunities.

Roger Marsh OBE, Chair of the Leeds City Region Enterprise

Partnership and Deputy Chair of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Investment Committee, described the York Outer Ring Road scheme as
being at the heart of the Strategic Economic Plan for Leeds City Region.

He said making it easier for businesses to connect with potential
customers, suppliers and each other would give them the confidence to
expand and invest, creating regeneration and job opportunities for all.

Plans can be viewed online at www.york.gov.uk/yorr, at the council’s
West Offices on Station Rise, YO1 6GA, or at two special public
exhibitions at Monks Cross Shopping Centre management suite (in the
corner by New Look) between 1 and 6pm on Tuesday 8 May and
Tuesday 22 May.

All comments will be reviewed and changes to the design made where
possible. The decision on the final layout will be taken at a public
Executive Member for Transport and Planning Decision Session meeting
later in the year.

The York Outer Ring Road improvements programme is being funded
through the West Yorkshire-plus Transport Fund, and the Leeds City
Region Growth Deal - a £1 billion package of Government investment
through the West Yorkshire Combined Authority and Leeds City Region
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) to accelerate growth and create jobs
across Leeds City Region.

© 2018 City of York Council: West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA
T: 01904 551550, E: ycc@york.gov.uk



http://tracking.york.gov.uk/tracking/click?d=IX4ioCSusOlECopbS2RyeDZ8mIg1XN9W_1rLnBhCZb8ni--2HN7-uwfkqAHZaKG8KsQ_y5UgXuZC3AEVkybgI6k2lGAqWnzlhmBOxprVMWVC0
tel:01904551550
mailto:ycc@york.gov.uk

Page 45
Annex 6

Frequently Asked Questions at Monks Cross Management Suite

consultation

How will the improvements increase capacity? | can't understand
how widening the approaches to the roundabout will help?

The performance of the A1237 York Outer Ring Road (YORR) will be
improved by widening the approaches to the roundabouts. More
approach lanes at the give way line increases the capacity for traffic to
flow through the roundabout, this in turn will help to reduce congestion
and journey times.

Surveys of traffic flows at the A59/A1237roundabout which was
upgraded in 2014 have shown that journey times have reduced by up to
4 minutes even with a 30% increase in the number of vehicles passing
through the junction

The upgrade of the roundabouts will help to ensure that strategic
(through) traffic can be encouraged out of the city centre and onto the
strategic highway network where the traffic flows can be managed more
effectively. This will be supported by other CYC projects to improve
public transport in the city centre to ‘lock in’ the benefits that the YORR
improvements will deliver.

The improvements at individual junctions will provide increased capacity,
but only when all 7 roundabouts have been improved will we see the
overall combined benefits of the improvements.

As well as reducing these present day delays the improvements are
necessary to accommodate and realise the predicted housing and
employment growth projections in the Local Plan.

Are the improvements being carried out in clockwise order? How
are they being phased?

We have a timeframe of 5 years in which the funding is available to
complete the programme of works on the 7 junctions. Therefore, we are
focussing on the "easier" junctions first in terms of those with the least
technical difficulty and with the least impact on residents. The phasing
of the junctions is indicative only as we will need some flexibility to meet
changing circumstances as the designs progress e.g. to get planning
approval and acquire land.

The current plan is for Wetherby Road roundabout improvements to
commence on site in June 2018, and it is proposed that Monks Cross
roundabout will follow on site in early 2019.



Page 46
Annex 6

What improvements will there be for pedestrians and cyclists?
We are looking to upgrade pedestrian and cycle facilities wherever
possible, whether these are at-grade facilities or new subways, utilising
and connecting to, as much existing infrastructure as we are able to.

The 2 lane exits just don’t work; people never let you merge in turn
as the lanes are intended.

As part of the YORR scheme we will be looking to help drivers, where
possible, use the increased roadspace efficiently. We are looking to use
improved signage and road markings to do this.

The Highway Codes advises “In congested road conditions do not
change lanes unnecessarily. Merging in turn is recommended but only if
safe and appropriate when vehicles are travelling at a very low speed,
e.g. when approaching road works or a road traffic incident. It is not
recommended at high speed.”

We will be investigating ways in which we can place appropriate
advisory signs at the roundabouts, which conform with the regulations,
and will help us to ensure that drivers are encouraged to use both lanes
as much as possible.

Can the money not be better spent on dualling the whole of the
A12377?

Dualling of the York Outer Ring Road (YORR) is an aspiration for the
City of York Council; however we do not have the level of funding to do
this at this present time.

In the meantime, the current project will significantly reduce journey
times and is part of a wider strategic plan to improve economic
productivity in the city by providing better access to jobs and homes.
This scheme is a “stepping stone” to future dualling and, where we are
able to, we are looking to do as much work as we can now to ensure
reduced costs and minimal disruption if funding for dualling becomes
available in the future.

What landscaping features are being introduced into the scheme?
There is a scheme of landscaping which forms part of these proposals
as with most highway improvement projects. In this case a range of
native species tree planting, hedgerow planting, grass seed mixes and
wildflower meadow planting will be introduced.

What impact will the construction work have on the existing traffic?
A lot of the construction work involves widening of the existing
infrastructure and can therefore be undertaken without disrupting the
current traffic flow for the majority of the time. However, there will be



Page 47

Annex 6

times where the new work will need to be tied into the existing road
layout and this will create some disruption during the construction
period. Wherever possible this work will be undertaken at off-peak times.
The need for any road closures will be kept to an absolute minimum and
will only be for short periods of time, generally overnight, for specific
activities such as the final resurfacing work.

Will there be any night time working?

The majority of the construction work will be carried out during daylight
hours, although there will be some work done at night. We will also
keep noise and disruption to any nearby properties as low as possible.
Access for emergency services will be maintained at all times.



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 7

PELL FRISCHMANN CONSULTANTS

NORTH YORK OUTER RING ROAD
7 NO JUNCTION DELIVERY PROGRAMME

ID Task Name Duration Start 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ﬁ‘ ‘ Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep| Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr [ May | Jun | Jul | Aug | sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep| Oct | Nov| Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May [ Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep| Oct | Nov| Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | sep | Oct | Nov | Dec ‘ Jan | Feb | Mar | Al
York Outer Ring Road Improvement Scheme 1265 days Mon 03/04/17 [ ; ; ; ; ; ]
WYCA Meetings 117 days Wed 25/10/17 T —— | | |
February CA Meeting 72 days Wed 25/10/17 ﬁ‘ : : : :
E Receipt of FBC for Peer Review 1 day Wed 25/10/17 W 25/10 | | | | |
E Last date for Papers for PAT Meeting 1 day Wed 22/11/17 W 2211 | | | |
E PAT Meeting 1 day Wed 29/11/17 n 29/1:1 : : : :
E Investment Committee Meeting 1 day Wed 03/01/18 W 03/01 | | | |
E Combined Authority Meeting 1day Thu01/02/18 : ] 0:1/02 : : :
April CA Meeting 65 days ~ Fri 05/01/18 [—— | | |
E Receipt of FBC for Peer Review 1day Fri 05/01/18 F 05/01 : : : :
E Last date for Papers for PAT Meeting lday Fri 02/02/18 | W 02/02 | | |
E PAT Meeting 1day Fri 09/02/18 : ] :09/02 : : :
E Investment Committee Meeting lday Fri16/03/18 | | 16/03 | | |
E Combined Authority Meeting 1day Thu 05/04/18 : : | 05/04 : : :
15 Activity 4 - Produce Full Business Case (7 Junctions) 219 days Mon 03/04/17 [ . | | | |
| | | |
16 Data Collection - Base Traffic Modelling 70 days Mon 03/04/17 : : : :
17 Traffic Modelling 60 days Mon 10/07/17 ! ! ! !
18 Preparation of Business Case 84 days Mon 10/07/17 : : : :
19 Submit Business Case for Peer Review l1day Fri03/11/17 : : : :
20 WYCA Approval Period 64 days Mon 06/11/17 | | | |
21 Activity 5 - Business Case Plus Submission 1265 days Mon 03/04/17, : ; ; ; v
22 Phase 1 - Wetherby Road 485 days Mon 03/04/17 | |
23 Prepare Detailed Design - Wetherby Road 26 wks Mon 03/04/17 : :
24 CYC Highway Technical Approval 12 wks Mon 02/10/17 ! !
25 Public Consultation - Wetherby Road 5 wks Mon 25/12/17 : :
26 Prepare Contract Documents 12 wks Mon 02/10/17 ! !
27 Tendering Process 6 wks Mon 25/12/17 : :
28 Prepare Business Case Plus Submission 14 wks  Fri 03/11/17 : :
29 Submit Business Case Plus lday Fri 09/02/18 | |
30 WYCA Business Case Approval Period 4 wks Mon 12/02/18 : :
31 Award Contract / Mobilisation Period 6 wks Mon 12/03/18, | |
32 E Construction Period - Wetherby Road 8 mons Mon 04/06/18 : :
33 Construction Period Float - Wetherby Road 1 mon Mon 14/01/19 | |
34 Phase 2 - Monks Cross 535 days Mon 02/10/17 : :
35 Prepare Detailed Design - Monks Cross 20 wks Mon 02/10/17 [ [
36 CYC Highway Technical Approval 4 wks Mon 19/02/18 : :
37 Public Consultation - Monks Cross 3 wks Mon 19/03/18 ! !
| 38 | Prepare Contract Documents 16 wks Mon 09/04/18! : :
39 Tendering Process 8 wks Mon 30/07/18| : :
40 Prepare Business Case Plus Submission 12 wks Mon 30/07/18! | |
41 WYCA Business Case Approval Period 4 wks Mon 22/10/18 : :
42 Award Contract / Mobilisation Period 6 wks Mon 19/11/18, | |
43 Construction Period - Monks Cross 8 mons Mon 11/02/19 : : ‘
44 Construction Period Float - Monks Cross 1 mon Mon 23/09/19] L L
45 Phase 3 - Haxby Road / Strensall Road 895 days Mon 02/10/17 : : J
46 Prepare Preliminary Design (Haxby road) 16 wks Mon 02/10/17 ! !
47 Prepare Preliminary Design (Strensall road) 16 wks Mon 02/10/17 : :
| |
48 Prepare Planning Application (2no) 26 wks Mon 22/01/18 : :
49 16 wks Determination Period 16 wks Mon 23/07/18 | |
50 Prepare Detailed Design - Haxby 12 mons Mon 22/01/18| : :
51 CYC Highway Technical Approval 4 wks Mon 24/12/18 | |
52 Public Consultation - Haxby/Strensall Road 3 wks Mon 21/01/19 : :
53 Prepare Contract Documents 12 wks Mon 11/02/19! : :
54 Tendering Process 8 wks Mon 06/05/19 : :
55 Prepare Business Case Plus Submission 12 wks Mon 08/04/19! | |
56 WYCA Business Case Approval Period 4 wks' Mon 01/07/19 : :
57 Award Contract / Mobilisation Period 6 wks Mon 29/07/19 - L
58 Construction Period - Haxby 16 mons Mon 21/10/19| : ;
59 Construction Period Float - Haxby 2 mons Mon 11/01/21 : ‘L
60 Construction Period - Strensall 16 mons Mon 21/10/19|
61 Construction Period Float - Strensall 2 mons Mon 11/01/21 : “
62 Phase 4 - Great North Way, Clifton Moor & Wigginton 1046 days ~ Fri 02/02/18 ]
63 Prepare Tender for Design Contract 20 wks  Fri 02/02/18! :
64 Prepare Preliminary Design 20 wks  Fri 22/06/18! |
65 Prepare Detailed Design 12 mons  Fri 09/11/18| :
66 CYC Highway Technical Approval 4 wks  Fri11/10/19 |
67 Public Consultation - Haxby/Strensall Road 3wks Fri 08/11/19 :
68 Prepare Contract Documents 12 wks  Fri 29/11/19; !
69 Tendering Process 8wks  Fri 21/02/20 :
70 Prepare Business Case Plus Submission 12 wks  Fri 24/01/20! :
71 WYCA Business Case Approval Period 4wks  Fri 17/04/20 |
72 Award Contract / Mobilisation Period 6 wks  Fri 15/05/20, :
73 Construction Period 11 mons Mon 08/03/21 | Yo
74 Construction Period Float 1 mon Mon 10/01/22 : ‘\‘
LN NN I O O
Lo} & re—— ]
Project: NYORR 7 Junction Delivery P
Date: February 2018 L < p—
e— | I <
Pr— @]

61 abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51

Pell Frischmann

.

York Outer Ring Road

Monks Cross
July 2018

Report on Public Engagement

H W50819 MCS RO02

Submitted by Pell Frischmann

excellence through innovation



Page 52

ANNEX 8
Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02
REVISION RECORD Report Ref: W50819 MCS R0O1
Rev | Description Date Originator | Checked | Approved

- First Draft 31 July 2018 CH

RO1 | Public Engagement Report | 15 August 2018 CH MF PM
R0O2 | Public Engagement Report | 17 August 2018 CH MF PM

This report is to be regarded as confidential to our Client and it is intended for their use only and may not
be assigned. Consequently, and in accordance with current practice, any liability to any third party in
respect of the whole or any part of its contents is hereby expressly excluded. Before the report or any part
of it is reproduced or referred to in any document, circular or statement and before its contents or the
contents of any part of it are disclosed orally to any third party, our written approval as to the form and
context of such a publication or disclosure must be obtained

Prepared for:

L—JZQ; CLTY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Prepared by:

Pell Frischmann
George House
George Street

Wakefield
WF1 1LY

Pell Frischmann




Page 53

ANNEX 8
Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02
CONTENTS
1. INTRODUGCTION. ...ttt e e e e e e e e r e e e e e e 1
2. PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT ... 2
2.1 PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT EVENTS.....oiiiiiiiiie e 2
2.2 PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT PACKAGE........ci ittt 2
3. RESPONSES ... 3
3.1 MONKS CROSS MANAGEMENT SUITE EVENTS 3
3.2 RETURNED QUESTIONAIRES 4
3.3 EMAIL RESPONSES
4
3.4 TWITTER RESPONSES
5
3.5 FACEBOOK COMMENTS
6
4 SUMMARY ...ttt 8
5 CONCLUSIONS ...ttt e e e e e e e e 12
5.1 CONCLUSIONS . ... 12
APPENDICES
A SAMPLE PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT PACK
B PRESS RELEASE
C LIST OF BUSINESSES CONSULTED
D FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Pell Frischmann



Page 54 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

1

11

1.2

1.3

14

INTRODUCTION

Options for improvement of the A1237 York Outer Ring Road (YORR) have been
considered by City of York Council (CYC). Full dualling and grade separated
junctions have been rejected at this stage due to funding issues. Long term
dualling remains the aspiration of CYC but initial funding has been agreed with the
West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) to upgrade seven roundabouts on
the A1237 YORR.

Monks Cross Roundabout improvement is the second of the seven roundabouts to
be considered.

Pell Frischmann (PF) has been commissioned by CYC to review the consultation
for the Monks Cross Roundabout improvement.

To assist in this process, a public engagement exercise has been undertaken to
allow affected residents and key stakeholders to comment on the detailed
changes.

The aim of this report is to review the responses received from the public,

summarise these responses and provide conclusions and recommendations.

Pell Frischmann



Page 55 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

2 PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

2.1 Public engagement events

On 3" May 2018 letters informing of the forthcoming public engagement were sent to;

Julian Sturdy MP and Rachael Maskell MP

Councillors Ayre, Boyce, Cullwick, Cuthbertson, D’Agorne, Dew, Doughty, Douglas, Gillies,
Lisle, Looker, Orrell and Runciman.

The Parish Councils of Earswick, Heworth without, Huntingdon with New Earswick and
Strensall with Towthorpe.

The public engagement began on Friday 4 May to Friday 1 June 2018 and the following
events were undertaken

211

2.1.2

213

214

2.15

2.1.6

2.2

221

222

2.2.3

An unmanned display was set up within the reception area at West Offices from 4
May for the duration of the public engagement.

Monks Cross Management Suite public engagement events were held on the 8
and 22 May 2018, from 1-6pm, with officers from CYC and PF in attendance. A
total of 50 people attended.

A designated e-mail address yorr@york.gov.uk was assigned to receive
comments. 14 comments were received.

A Facebook post was made. 76 comments were received with 27 likes and 15
shares.

Twitter feeds were posted every day during the public engagement except 8, 15,
16, 22, 25, 26 and 27 May. 10 comments were received

A Press Release was published on 4 May. See Appendix A
Public Engagement Package

A public engagement package, including a questionnaire, was delivered to the
small number of individual residential properties within the study area.

A public engagement package was also delivered to all businesses listed in
Appendix B

A copy of the information provided in these packages is included as Appendix C

and comprises the following:

2.2.3.1 A leaflet — containing information of the proposals and a map of the
study area

2.2.3.2 A questionnaire and freepost envelope — to be returned to CYC

This information was organised and hand-delivered by representatives of CYC on
4™ May 2018.

This information was also available for customers to pick up at the unmanned
display within the reception area of City of York Council’'s West Offices,

Pell Frischmann


mailto:yorr@york.gov.uk

Page 56

ANNEX 8
Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02
224 All the public engagement information, along with a copy of the questionnaire was

made available online at www.york.gov.uk/yorr,

3. RESPONSES

A summary of comments received from the Monks Cross Management Suite consultation
events was provided to PF by CYC for consideration in this report.

5 completed questionnaires were returned directly to CYC before being transferred to PF,
along with other written representations, including 14 emails, 76 Facebook posts and 10
Twitter comments.

These responses were logged to allow easy assessment and review. Each response was
given a unique reference number to allow specific questionnaires to be recovered as
necessary. Letters included with return questionnaires were also given the same reference
number as the questionnaire to which they were attached.

No direct responses were received from MPs, Councillors or from local Businesses.

The following sections of this report summarise the responses received from members of the
public.

3.1 Monks Cross Management Suite events

In total 50 people attended the Monks Cross Management Suite events and the following

comments were received:
*

Dual the A1237 YORR
Positive about the scheme — agree with improvements
Introduce flyovers then dualling would not be needed

Need to reduce traffic speeds exiting Monks Cross Link Road
onto the roundabout

Merging lanes not long enough — cause driver anger issues
Should ensure cycle lanes are provided
Consultee was not aware of proposed housing development
Concerns at Haxby roundabout
Concerns at Strensall roundabout

The design of the A19 and A59 is poor as it causes the other
roundabouts to be blocked
Why not dual the single carriageway sections of the A64 from
Hopgrove to Scarborough 1

P ININ|R|R(N] R (ko

Officers also took numerous questions on the design of the roundabouts including the
following:

How will the improvements increase capacity?
Are the improvements being carried out in clockwise order? How are they being phased?
What improvements will there be for pedestrians and cyclists?

Pell Frischmann


http://www.york.gov.uk/yorr

Page 57 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

The 2 lane exits just don’t work, people never let you merge in turn as the lanes are
intended.

Can the money not be better spent on dualling the whole of the A1237 YORR?

What landscaping features are being introduced into the scheme?

What impact will the construction work have on the existing traffic?

Will there be any night time working?

Officers provided appropriate answers, and these are logged in Appendix D

3.2 Returned Questionnaires

Only 5 questionnaires were returned.
For this reason, questionnaires alone can not be seen as a representative sample so only
the comments and views are considered in this report.

1 Monks Cross link road should become 2 lanes earlier to avoid queueing for right
turning traffic and to avoid dangerous overtaking manoeuvers.
North Lane is in poor condition in need of repair
2 Roundabouts at Haxby and Strensall should be made bigger as they slow
everything. Planned works do not help as people just speed up and push in.
Shops are closing at Monks Cross, so it does not matter when works are carried

out.
3 Problems will be road noise and increase in traffic. This will have environmental
impact, health impact and will affect the safety of residents and cyclists
4 Haxby should be priority. The Monks Cross improvement is a waste of money

5 The principle of the design is sound but the merge lanes are a problem. Hatched
markings at roundabout exits would inform motorists to keep exits clear but they
would probably be ignored.

3.3 Email Responses

Fourteen email responses were logged and numbered by date received. One of the emails
was a confirmation of an initial response so the two are counted as a single response.
However, one comment was about downloading information so only thirteen consultation
emails were considered providing 17 comments.

1 Full provision for pedestrians and cyclists should be provided.
‘Looking to upgrade pedestrian and cycling facilities’ is not good 7 May
enough
2 Will there be sufficient visibility on the left turn filter lane onto the

A1237 Westbound? Are road markings to be spiraled?

3 Objection to a dedicated slip road onto North Lane as the road is

over used, in poor condition and there is a potential closure of 13 May
access onto the A64

8 May

Pell Frischmann



Page 58

ANNEX 8
Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02
4 Problems with the A1237 YORR are between Wigginton and Haxby 14 Ma
and also Haxby and Strensall — these should be priority. y
5 Proposals are only a temporary solution to ease road junction 17 Ma:
capacity. Dual the entire A1237 YORR. y
6 Roundabout near Toby Carvery left lane (Hopgrove Lane) should 20 May

have Scarborough and Leeds on it as the exit lane has.
7 | The download PDF of the proposed improvements at Monks Crossis | 20 May
not complete.
8 Main congestion arises on Monks Cross link. This is the area which 24+25
needs improvement. May

9 Cycle facilities need improvement on safety grounds, in particular a

cycle path from Hopgrove Lane roundabout to Monks Cross. 25 May
10 Strong objection to Merge Lanes, they slow traffic down and are 29 Ma:
dangerous. y
11 | Request of assurance that the proposed roundabout improvements
) . 31 May
will accommodate proposed development traffic.
12 | Appropriate provision for pedestrians and cyclists has not been
proposed as part of the upgrade. The orbital cycle route is 1 June
incomplete.
13 | Edge markings and associated cats eyes should be improved on this
10 June
stretch of road.
14 | Road improvements are welcomed but dualling of the A64 towards 13 June

Scarborough should be promoted.

3.4 Twitter responses

Ten tweets were received and logged. However, two comments were about the consultation
event itself and another was a grass cutting comment so only seven consultation tweets
were received providing 8 comments.

1 Consultation enquiry for people not working in the centre of York and 7 M
working 9 to 5. ay
2 Dual the A1237 YORR or it will be a waste of time and money 7 May
3 Unconstructive Grass cutting comment 7 May
4 Dual the A1237 YORR or it will be a waste of time and money 8 May
5 Make it a dual carriageway 10 May
6 Single carriageway is a waste of money. 10 May
7 Why not hold consultation events at weekend when people can 21 May
attend?
8 Shops are due to close, so you decide to upgrade the roundabout. 23 May
9 Haxby and Wigginton Roundabouts cause most delay. 23 May
10 Dual the A1237 YORR or it will be a waste of time and money. 28 May

Pell Frischmann



Page 59 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

3.5 Facebook Comments

76 respondents replied through Facebook with 27 likes and 15 shares.

However, 43 of these respondents provided comments which were social and / or
unconstructive so the total of respondents pertinent to this report reduces to 33 providing 38
comments. A further three respondents offered only unconstructive criticism but can be
taken as objections to the proposals.

Dual the A1237 YORR or it will be a waste of time and money
Against the scheme. Unconstructive criticism
Against the scheme. Unconstructive criticism
Against the scheme. Unconstructive criticism
The cost of adapting or replacing bridges on the ring road to allow dualling would
cost hundreds of millions.

Until people learn how to use merge lanes the improvements will not work. Let
people in or get a fine.

7 People get angry when you use the outer merge lane

8 People get angry when you use the outer merge lane

9 Danger being pushed out into oncoming traffic on merge lanes

10 Dualling will not work until A64 is fully dualled.

11 | Educate people about merge in lanes. Install cameras and fine those who do not allow
merging.

12 | Merge at the end of the lane not at the roundabout

13 | Hopefully better than A59 roundabout where lanes do not flow.

14 | 50 yards of merge lane will make no difference to a half of a mile of queues.

15 | Why not build a flyover for the main route?

16 | Wetherby Road, Haxby and Wigginton roundabouts are the main problems.

17 | A59 roundabout radii are borderline dangerous

18 | Dual carriageway or we will be even more behind other towns and cities.

19 | Haxby and Wigginton roundabouts need sorting first.

20 | Make the A1237 YORR a dual carriageway all the way round

21 | Make the A1237 YORR a dual carriageway all the way round changing number of lanes
and merge lanes cause problems.

22 | Wigginton roundabout upgrade is more urgent

23 | Make it a dual carriageway all the way round

24 | Earswick (Strensall roundabout) to Rawcliffe should be sorted first.

25 | What about Strensall Roundabout?

26 | It will be a waste of time and money unless the A1237 YORR is dual carriageway or
alternatively replace roundabouts with flyovers.

27 | Length of merge lanes are too short. Miles of tailbacks cannot merge in 50 yards —
remove merge lanes

28 | The amount of traffic causes tailbacks. Merge lanes help when there is moderate traffic
flow.

29 | How about starting a priority bus service around the North Ring Road to encourage
people out of their cars?

QB IWIN|F

(o]

Pell Frischmann



Page 60 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

30 | Dual the A1237 YORR or it will be a waste of time and money Should have been dualled
years ago.

31 If drivers used indicators when exiting the roundabout, it would help the waiting queue.
32 | People should learn how to use merge lanes. Both lanes should be used. That is why
they were built.

33 | People should learn how to use merge lanes. Both lanes should be used. That is why
they were built.

Pell Frischmann



Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

Page 61

ANNEX 8

4 SUMMARY

4.1 Summary of Comments

Tabled below is a summary of the comments most offered during the consultation.

Dualling of the York Outer Ring Road YORR)
is very much an aspiration for the City of York
Council, however we do not have the level of
funding to do this at this present time.

Dual the A1237 YORR 20 . . L .
In the meantime, this project is part of a wider
strategic plan to improve economic
attractiveness of the city by enhancing the city
centre environment within and around the city.
As part of the improvement scheme we will be
Merging lanes cause looking to educate drivers where we are able
problems or are not long 15 to, to improve (where possible) the usage of
enough — cause driver anger all lanes on the Ring Road, through improved
issues signage and road markings.
Concerns at Haxby 3 Comments noted.
roundabout
Concerns at Strensall 6 Comments noted.
roundabout
Positive about the scheme — 5 Comments noted.
agree with improvements
Negative about the scheme — 5 Comments noted.
Disagree with improvements
CYC have listened to the comments from the
public engagement and are including facilities
ireoglgvigzzure cycle lanes 5 for cyclists and pedestrians as part of the
Monks Cross upgrade.
Concerns at  Wigginton 4 Comments noted.
roundabout
The cost of adapting or replacing bridges on
Introduce ~ flyovers  then the ring road would cost hundreds _of millions
: 3 and is beyond the scope of this current
dualling would not be needed scheme
CYC are including facilities for cyclists and
Ensure appropriate provision 3 pedestrians as part of the Monks Cross
for pedestrians upgrade.
Improve Monks Cross Link 3 Monks Cross Link Road will be improved
Road within the scheme extents.
The design of the A59 3 Comments noted and have been passed on to

Pell Frischmann




Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

Page 62

ANNEX 8

roundabout is poor.

our highway design consultants and CYC
colleagues for information.

Dual the single carriageway
sections of the A64 towards
Scarborough

Comments noted. This is not within this
particular scheme extents but has been
forwarded to colleagues at Highways
England.

North Lane is in a poor
condition and in need of
repair

Comments have been passed to CYC
maintenance colleagues for further
investigation

Problems will be road noise
and increase in traffic. This
will have environmental and
health impact

CYC Major Projects team will consider
treatments e.g. fencing and low noise
surfacing. Noise and environmental health
surveys will be carried out where appropriate.

Hatched markings at
roundabout  exits  would
inform motorists to keep exits
clear

Although it has been seen at various
locations, unfortunately strictly speaking the
Department for Transport do not permit the
use of yellow box markings at roundabouts
unless traffic entering the box is controlled by
signals at all times (nor do they permit ‘KEEP
CLEAR’ markings), as this leads to
uncertainty as to who has priority. However,
the proposals should increase capacity at all
the roundabouts so that there should be no
regular queuing on the circulatory
carriageway.

Will there be sufficient
visibility on the left turn filter
lane onto the A1237
Westbound? Are road
markings to be spiralled?

Yes, to both questions. The design will
conform to current design standards and will
therefore be in accordance with the Design
Manual for Roads and Bridges which covers
visibility.

Objection to a dedicated slip
road onto North Lane as the
road is over used and there
is a potential closure of
access onto the A64

This is an option being investigated by
Highways England, who are responsible for
the A64, but has not been confirmed or
dismissed, or has any specific timescales. We
are therefore working on the information that
we have at present i.e. that North Lane
remains open.

Roundabout near  Toby
Carvery left lane (Hopgrove
Lane) should be marked as
the exit lane with direction
markings for Scarborough
and Leeds.

Comments noted. This is not within this
particular scheme extents but wil be
forwarded to colleagues to investigate this
request further.

Request of assurance that
the proposed roundabout
improvements will

The traffic modelling required to secure
funding for the improvements, from the West
Yorkshire Combined Authority, confirms this.

Pell Frischmann




Page 63 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

accommodate proposed
development traffic

Edge markings and All road markings and cats eyes are to be
associated cats eyes should replaced within the works extents.

be improved on this stretch 1
of road.

The cost of adapting or Agreed, comments noted.
replacing bridges on the ring
road to allow dualling would 1
cost hundreds of millions

The traffic modelling required to secure
funding for the improvements, from the West
Yorkshire Combined Authority, confirms that
merge lanes will provide additional capacity to
the junctions.

The amount of traffic causes
tailbacks. Merge lanes help
when there is moderate 1
traffic flow

We currently have a number of Park and Ride
sites on the perimeter of the Outer Ring Road,
which work successfully in reducing the
number of vehicles travelling into the city
centre. Bus services do not currently travel
1 round the North ORR as the journey times
cannot be relied upon. The benefits of
providing a priority bus service on the ORR
would not justify the cost and would only
benefit localized journeys.

How about starting a priority
bus service around the North
Ring Road to encourage
people out of their cars

If drivers used indicators Agreed, this is an issue relating to driver
when exiting the roundabout, education.

. o 1

it would help the waiting

queue

Most comments highlighted potential problems with the proposed improvements at Monks
Cross and it is difficult to ascertain support or otherwise. However, if highlighting difficulties
but not suggesting alternative solutions or proposing the works did not go ahead it is
assumed that these are supporting comments with reservations.

Similarly, if comments do propose alternative solutions then these comments are taken as
objections to the proposals to improve the roundabout at Monks Cross but are taken as
agreement that improvement works are required on the A1237 YORR including the junction
at Monks Cross.

96 comments were received from 83 respondents.

Unsurprisingly all but 5 of the respondents 94% were in favour of carrying out some form of
improvement to Monks Cross roundabout.

The form of improvement was not so clear with 20 respondents preferring dualling the A1237
YORR and three respondents preferring flyovers (grade separated junctions). This adds up

Pell Frischmann
10



Page 64 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

to a total of 28 comments from 27 respondents, which equates to 33% against the specific
proposal outlined in the public engagement document for Monks Cross roundabout.

Whilst 94% of the respondents were in favour of some form of improvement to Monks Cross
roundabout, only 67% expressed a preference for the specific proposal set out in the public
engagement whose design mirrors the improvements of the previously upgraded A19 and
A59 roundaboults.

The most popular alternative to the present scheme is to dual the A1237 YORR. Only one of
these comments included grade separated junctions but, though not specified by consultees
it could be argued that most people’s understanding of dualling would likely include removal
of roundabouts. 2 comments suggested that grade separation would remove the need for
dualling as traffic flows along the A1237 YORR would be continuous.

A number of respondents highlighted that the main problems on the A1237 YORR lay not
with Monks Cross but with other roundabouts and it would be more beneficial to give the
other roundabouts priority. 8 comments were received for priority to be given for Haxby, six
comments for Strensall and 4 for Wigginton.

Valid comments were received enforcing the ideal that pedestrians and cyclists are at the
top of CYC road hierarchy so greater consideration should be given to pedestrians and
cyclists in the proposed improvements. 5 comments were received regarding the provision of
cycle lanes and three comments regarding pedestrian safety.

3 comments were each received regarding the poor condition of the Monks Cross Link, the
substandard design of the A59 roundabout and suggestion to dual the single carriageway
sections of the A64 towards Scarborough

2 comments highlighted the poor condition of North Lane.

Other concerns aired included driver habits, road markings, slip roads, road noise,
environmental concerns and a suggestion for an Outer Ring Road bus route.

Pell Frischmann
11



Page 65 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

5 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Conclusions

In conclusion, most respondents are generally in favour of the proposals at Monks Cross. A
lot of the concerns they raise are either outside the scope of the scheme or relate to greater
traffic congestion at the Haxby, Strensall and Wigginton roundabouts. There is a possibility
that should traffic flows be improved at Monks Cross, then congestion at the smaller
roundabouts at the Haxby, Strensall and Wiggington junctions may increase. This issue is
not considered to be a major concern but will be considered when programming the phasing
of the remaining roundabouts.

The dualling of the A1237 YORR is the most popular alternative to roundabout
improvements. This is in line with the CYC long term aspiration to dual with grade separated
junctions, but funding issues rule out this option at present.

The greatest concern of respondents is the issue of merging lanes. Longer merge lanes
would generally be welcomed to allow a greater throughput of vehicles, but drivers appear to
be unsure on how to use them properly. There are misconceptions with drivers in both lanes
about who has the right of way. A recent application to the Secretary of State for Transport,
asking him to approve some bespoke signing at Wetherby Road roundabout has been
refused. It will be difficult to specifically educate users of the A1237 YORR through the
traditional channels, so this matter will continue to be a problem. Merging lanes will
disappear if and when dualling of the A1237 takes place.

Also of concern, is the lack of cycle facilities both crossing the A1237 YORR to allow access
into York and on a circular route around the bypass. Several measures have been
incorporated in the roundabout improvements, but to do anything more would be beyond the
scope of the current project.

There has been criticism of the A59 roundabout design, but in the main, this is in relation to
the merging lanes arrangement mentioned earlier.

Pell Frischmann
12



Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

Page 66

ANNEX 8

APPENDIX A

SAMPLE CONSULTATION PACKAGE

-
Construction
Construction at the Monks Cross
roundabout is proposed to begin in January
2019, and is expected to last approximately
nine months. Although localised delays
during construction are inevitable, we will
plan the works to minimise disruption to
local residents, businesses and the
travelling public.

wWe will also keep noise, vibration and
disruption to nearby properties as low as
possible. The need for any road closures will
be kept to an absolute minimum and will only
be for short periods of time for specific
activities such as the final surfacing work.
Access for emergency services will be
maintained at all times.

Further updates relating to site activities
will be provided before work starts and
will continue during the construction of
the project.

The future

Whilst we do not have access to sufficient
funding for dualling York Outer Ring Road
at present, we are ensuring that the current
upgrade designs can accommodate dualling

in the future where possible.
West L EITT RGN
Yorkshire 1
Authority
NORTHERNE. .. . |
POWERHOUSE YORK

-------

How to find out more
There will be two public exhibitions with
‘Council officers on hand to answer any
questions at:

Management Suite,

Monks Cross Shopping Park

{in the corner by New Look), York Y032 9GX

Tuesday 8 May, 1-6pm

Tuesday 22 May, 1-6pm

‘You can view the plans and fill in an online
questionnaire at www.york.gov.uk/yorr and
at West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA

Please let us know your views
Please come to the events, West Offices or
visit the website, and let us know your views
or raise any concerns you have about the
proposed improvements to Monks Cross
roundabout. You can contact us at:
Customer call centre number 01904 551550
E-mail: yorr@york.gov.uk

On-line www.york.gov.uk/consultations

By Post:

York Outer Ring Road (Major Transport
Projects Team), City of York Council,

West Offices, Station Rise, York YO1 6GA

See Council website for further details
www.york.gov.uk/yorr

Please let us have your views by
Friday 1 June 2018

[ citvofvork [7] @CityofYork

Q York Quter Ring Road

EITT @r

YORK

Monks Cross
roundabout

How we're reducing
congestion on
York Outer Ring Road

- r
re (P i

-
- - Y

- O'fark Outer Ring Road

Pell Frischmann

13



Public Engagement Report

H W50819 MCS R02

Page 67

ANNEX 8

. .
Project aims

The proposal is to upgrade seven
roundabouts on the York Outer Ring Road
(A1237) between Wetherby Road and Monks
Cross junctions. This has been a long held
aspiration for the City of York Council.

The outer ring road is a key road for local
and regional traffic, and is often heavily
congested. We are starting with the upgrade
of Wetherby Road roundabout this summer.
We are asking you ahout the proposed
improvements to the next roundabout, at
Monks Cross.

York Quter Ring Road has received

£38 million investment through the West
Yorkshire Plus Transport Fund. This is part

of Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership
(LEP) Growth Deal - a £1 billion package of
government investment to accelerate growth
and create jobs across Leeds City Region.

Why upgrade the
roundabouts?

Increasing capacity at the roundabouts
will have the largest impact on reducing
journey times.

Issues to address:
* acute congestion

unreliable journey times, encouraging
traffic into the city centre

impact on the city's econamy and
productivity

poor air quality

limited capacity to meet the
housing and employment needs in York's
emerging Local Plan.

Improving all seven roundabouts will
ultimately reduce congestion, improve traffic
flows and journey times on the outer ring
road in the north of the city. This should also
encourage traffic away from the city centre
and onto the larger roads where trafficis
more effectively managed.

Construction stages

The upgrades to the seven roundabouts will
be completed in a four year programme. The
Wetherby Road and Monks Cross junctions
are being improved first. They are straight
forward designs and the low impact of the
works means we can start construction while
we plan the more complicated schemes. We
will publicise the timetable for delivering
these roundabouts as soon as possible.

Monks Cross
roundabout

improvements

The blueprint for improving the capacity at all
~ the roundabouts is based on providing three

.| lane entries on the Ring Road approaches

L. tothe roundabout and two lane exits,

which will provide anincrease in the
junction capacity. These proposals

o are similar to those recently

implemented at the A1237/A59

o and A1237/A19.

ke
)

Proposed -
highway Additional drainage ditches
widening 1bound
N . Proposed boundary
for t{%ﬁiﬂe s hedges
i North Lane
3m grassed

access track

v

Proposed highway 7>
it}

widening

Pedestrianand '\
cycling improvements

At the Monks Cross junction there are no
existing pedestrian or cycling facilities to
upgrade but we will continue to look out for
all potential opportunities to implement
pedestrian and cycling infrastructure in

the future.

Pell Frischmann

14




Page 68 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

APPENDIX B
PRESS RELEASE

Published Friday, 4th May 2018

City of York Council is sharing proposals to cut congestion and journey times on one of
York's busiest roads.

Residents and businesses have until Friday 1 June to view and comment on designs to
upgrade the outer ring road’s Monks Cross roundabout.

This will be the second of seven A1237 roundabouts set for major improvements over the
next four years — a total £38 million programme funded through the West Yorkshire-plus
Transport Fund. The council is starting work on the first junction improvement at Wetherby
Road this summer.

The roundabout upgrades will mean more lanes and space on the approaches and exits.
Where possible the road layouts will be designed to accommodate the potential future
scheme to bring the outer ring road up to dual carriageway standard. The Monks Cross
roundabout improvement works are planned for early 2019, although some site clearance
work could start earlier.

Clir Peter Dew, executive member for transport, said:

“We are working to improve traffic flow at the A1237 roundabouts, and this project will
deliver reduced journey times.

“With Wetherby Road work starting this summer, and Monks Cross plans developing, we're
investing in improvements to the outer ring road.

“We realise that the ultimate improvement would be grade separation at the busiest
roundabouts, but the cost of that would be far in excess of what is available.

"I encourage residents to take a look at the designs and, of course, share their views.”

Earlier this year ClIr Peter Box, Chair of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority’s Investment
Committee, said the improvements to York Outer Ring Road will help harness the vast
economic potential of York and the surrounding area.

Clir Box said that the West Yorkshire-plus Transport Fund scheme will reduce congestion and
improve travel flows and will mean local residents have better connections with employment,
training and leisure opportunities.

Roger Marsh OBE, Chair of the Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership and Deputy Chair of
the West Yorkshire Combined Authority Investment Committee, described the York Outer

Pell Frischmann
15



Page 69 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

Ring Road scheme as being at the heart of the Strategic Economic Plan for Leeds City
Region.

He said making it easier for businesses to connect with potential customers, suppliers and
each other would give them the confidence to expand and invest, creating regeneration and
job opportunities for all.

Plans can be viewed online at www.york.gov.uk/yorr, at the council’'s West Offices on Station
Rise, YO1 6GA, or at two special public exhibitions at Monks Cross Shopping Centre
management suite (in the corner by New Look) between 1 and 6pm on Tuesday 8 May and
Tuesday 22 May.

All comments will be reviewed and changes to the design made where possible. The
decision on the final layout will be taken at a public Executive Member for Transport and
Planning Decision Session meeting later in the year.

The York Outer Ring Road improvements programme is being funded through the West
Yorkshire-plus Transport Fund, and the Leeds City Region Growth Deal - a £1 billion package
of Government investment through the West Yorkshire Combined Authority and Leeds City
Region Enterprise Partnership (LEP) to accelerate growth and create jobs across Leeds City
Region.

© 2018 City of York Council: West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA

T: 01904 551550, E: ycc@york.gov.uk

Pell Frischmann
16


http://tracking.york.gov.uk/tracking/click?d=IX4ioCSusOlECopbS2RyeDZ8mIg1XN9W_1rLnBhCZb8ni--2HN7-uwfkqAHZaKG8KsQ_y5UgXuZC3AEVkybgI6k2lGAqWnzlhmBOxprVMWVC0
tel:01904551550
mailto:ycc@york.gov.uk

Page 70

ANNEX 8
Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02
APPENDIX C
LIST OF BUSINESSES CONSULTED
Monks Cross consultation — list of businesses receiving consultation

information

American Golf
Boots
Carphone Warehouse
Clarks

Costa Coffee
Debenhams
EE

Evans Clothing
Evans Cycles
Game

H&M
Hobbycraft
Laura Ashley
Miss Selfridge
Monsoon
New Look
Outfit

Pizza Hut
Primark

River Island
Sainsbury’s
Schuh

Sports Direct
Starbucks

TK Maxx
Thomas Cook
Thomson
Topman

Top Shop
WH Smith

Pell Frischmann
17



Page 71 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

APPENDIX D

Frequently Asked Questions at Monks Cross Management Suite consultation

How will the improvements increase capacity? | can't understand how
widening the approaches to the roundabout will help?

The performance of the A1237 York Outer Ring Road (YORR) will be improved by widening
the approaches to the roundabouts. More approach lanes at the give way line increases the
capacity for traffic to flow through the roundabout, this in turn will help to reduce congestion
and journey times.

Surveys of traffic flows at the A59/A1237roundabout which was upgraded in 2014 have
shown that journey times have reduced by up to 4 minutes even with a 30% increase in the
number of vehicles passing through the junction

The upgrade of the roundabouts will help to ensure that strategic (through) traffic can be
encouraged out of the city centre and onto the strategic highway network where the traffic
flows can be managed more effectively. This will be supported by other CYC projects to
improve public transport in the city centre to ‘lock in’ the benefits that the YORR
improvements will deliver.

The improvements at individual junctions will provide increased capacity, but only when all 7
roundabouts have been improved will we see the overall combined benefits of the
improvements.

As well as reducing these present day delays the improvements are necessary to
accommodate and realise the predicted housing and employment growth projections in the
Local Plan.

Are the improvements being carried out in clockwise order? How are they
being phased?

We have a timeframe of 5 years in which the funding is available to complete the programme
of works on the 7 junctions. Therefore, we are focussing on the "easier" junctions first in
terms of those with the least technical difficulty and with the least impact on residents. The
phasing of the junctions is indicative only as we will need some flexibility to meet changing
circumstances as the designs progress e.g. to get planning approval and acquire land.

The current plan is for Wetherby Road roundabout improvements to commence on site in
June 2018, and it is proposed that Monks Cross roundabout will follow on site in early 2019.

What improvements will there be for pedestrians and cyclists?

We are looking to upgrade pedestrian and cycle facilities wherever paossible, whether these
are at-grade facilities or new subways, utilising and connecting to, as much existing
infrastructure as we are able to.

Pell Frischmann



Page 72 ANNEX 8

Public Engagement Report
H W50819 MCS R02

The 2 lane exits just don’t work, people never let you merge in turn as the
lanes are intended.

As part of the YORR scheme we will be looking to help drivers, where possible, use the
increased roadspace efficiently. We are looking to use improved signage and road markings
to do this.

The Highway Codes advises “In congested road conditions do not change lanes
unnecessarily. Merging in turn is recommended but only if safe and appropriate when
vehicles are travelling at a very low speed, e.g. when approaching road works or a road
traffic incident. It is not recommended at high speed.”

We will be investigating ways in which we can place appropriate advisory signs at the
roundabouts, which conform with the regulations, and will help us to ensure that drivers are
encouraged to use both lanes as much as possible.

Can the money not be better spent on dualling the whole of the A1237?

Dualling of the York Outer Ring Road (YORR) is an aspiration for the City of York Council,
however we do not have the level of funding to do this at this present time.

In the meantime, the current project will significantly reduce journey times and is part of a
wider strategic plan to improve economic productivity in the city by providing better access to
jobs and homes.

This scheme is a “stepping stone” to future dualling and, where we are able to, we are
looking to do as much work as we can now to ensure reduced costs and minimal disruption if
funding for dualling becomes available in the future.

What landscaping features are being introduced into the scheme?
There is a scheme of landscaping which forms part of these proposals as with most highway
improvement projects. In this case a range of native species tree planting, hedgerow
planting, grass seed mixes and wildflower meadow planting will be introduced.

What impact will the construction work have on the existing traffic?

A lot of the construction work involves widening of the existing infrastructure and can
therefore be undertaken without disrupting the current traffic flow for the majority of the time.
However, there will be times where the new work will need to be tied into the existing road
layout and this will create some disruption during the construction period. Wherever possible
this work will be undertaken at off-peak times.

The need for any road closures will be kept to an absolute minimum and will only be for short
periods of time, generally overnight, for specific activities such as the final resurfacing work.

Will there be any night time working?

The majority of the construction work will be carried out during daylight hours, although there
will be some work done at night. We will also keep noise and disruption to any nearby
properties as low as possible. Access for emergency services will be maintained at all
times.

Pell Frischmann



Page 73 Agenda Item 6

Decision Session - Executive Member for 13 September 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Assistant Director, Transport,
Highways and Environment

Advertising Boards (“A” Boards) on the Public Highway

Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Executive Member of the
policy which was introduced in February 2017 which prohibited the
placement of advertising boards and similar materials on the public
highway, within the Business Improvement District (BID) boundary of the
city centre.

2. This report includes a summary of how the policy has been implemented,
with reference to the operation day to day and any enforcement work.

3. As part of the analysis of the policy further engagement with key
stakeholders has been undertaken and this is included in the report.

4. Micklegate was designated as an exception within the zone due to its
different physical characteristics (wider footways) and much lesser
footfall. The report comments upon the licensing arrangements in place.

5. The final component relates to a review of advert board material outside
of the city centre zone, this again being something required at the time of
policy introduction.

Recommendations
6. Itis recommended that the Executive Member approves:

1) The continuation of the prohibition policy on ‘A’ Boards consistent
with the policy and the geographical area remaining the same
(BID boundary)



Page 74

2) The continuation of the licensing procedures available to any
business situated along Micklegate, as again defined in the policy
street map. The licensing fee will be included in the annual review
of fees and charges.

3) That outside of the BID boundary, no formal policy is introduced.
However, in line with extant duty and responsibility (under the
provisos of the Highways Act 1980 and the Equality Act 2010) that
officers will continue to monitor and take any appropriative action
with regards to ‘A’ Boards, considered to be impacting on the use
of the public highway, in all other areas within the authority
boundary.

4) Officers to ensure that the continuation of the policy within the
BID boundary is communicated through appropriate channels,
including directly with the BID, Make it York and York Retail
Forum.

Reason: To continue to provide adequate control of the many and varied
obstructions (particularly for those with impaired mobility for
example, blind and/or partially sighted) temporarily located on
the public highway. This taking into account of the Council’s
responsibilities under the Highways Act 1980, the Equality Act
2010 and Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

To mitigate the impact on the visual amenity of the conservation
area and setting of the many listed buildings in the city centre.

To contribute to the removal of street clutter, improve the street
scene and public realm.

Background

The prohibition policy was introduced within the city centre (consistent
with BID boundary) in February 2017. In the initial weeks of it coming into
place, officers engaged with a number of businesses who initially
continued to place advert boards on the highway. The procedure put in
place through the policy includes for an initial discussion/reminder; this is
then followed with a formal approach/written letter.

On a relatively small number of occasions council officers have had to
remove an advert board and invoice the business. The total number of
boards removed in 17 months is less than 20.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 75

Officers from both Network Management, along with colleagues from
Community Safety undertook a series of walk arounds, during February
and March 2017 to seek to embed the policy, this included polite
reminders and dropping off copies of the policy.

It is fair to conclude that the vast majority of businesses complied with
the policy from the early days of its inception. As a result, the officer
resource required to monitor and engage with non compliance cases has
reduced noticeably, however there continues to be a low level of cases
were new boards appear or old ones re-appear. This is expected given
that business premise ownership, management and staffing are prone to
change and awareness of the policy is not always the primary focus. On
a monthly basis, current non compliance, advert board removals and
reminders are in the region of 10-15.

The policy also introduced the scope for special circumstances to be
presented by a business, a key criteria being that they do not have a
shop front (such as a business operating at first floor level). In these
cases, dispensation is available subject to the specific details. There are
a small number (under 10) of boards which satisfy the policy criteria and
which are sited through a licence on the public highway, within the BID
zone. This has included a few businesses which are advertising a service
without premises.

A further example of dispensation was given the business not situated on
a main thoroughfare, i.e. they are located on a snickle or alley. There
have again only been a small number of businesses who have
progressed a board licence for such purposes.

The policy also introduced the principle of shared (or city approved)
advert boards. This was seen as a possible option for businesses to
share a location, such as a wall mounted board (which could include
business that are all situated in close proximity). There are presently no
boards of this nature. This is probably due to the limited circumstances of
such situations and also the difficulty in finding a suitable location for a
shared board. Locations such as Gillygate were initially thought to be
potential streets where businesses could take this option forward. A piece
of land was indentified at the junction of Gillygate and Lord Mayors Walk
and discussion took place with the small business federation who were
representing the traders on Gillygate. However there has been no
approach to officers at this time to progress possible options.



14.

Page 76

The only street for which a full exemption was authorised was
Micklegate, which requires any business seeking an advert board to
submit an application and if considered acceptable a license will be
issued. There are presently 18 licensed boards on the street. The
reasons for this exemption followed considerable analysis of the street,
its usage and activity. Due to the much wider footways and lesser
demand overall (fewer pedestrians) it was recommended that the
placement of boards was unlikely to generate a safety, amenity or
equality issue.

Policy Review

15.

16.

17.

18.

Analysis of the prohibition within the central zone, primarily through
observation and monitoring, demonstrates a high level of compliance
which therefore achieves the primary reasons for its introduction: to
control the very noticeable degree of obstruction that had developed,;
reduce the impacts on visual amenity within the city’s historic core and
mitigate the impact of street scene clutter generally.

It appears that businesses have endeavoured to make adaptations to the
change and some innovation is evident. That has been as simple as
boards been sited inside the premises or often a smaller version in the
door or window. Different methods of marketing have been witnessed
and new technology playing a role in some examples (digital displays in
windows/entrances).

Consistent with the work prior to the drawing up of the policy
engagement has again been undertaken with representatives of some
key stakeholders. A short questionnaire was sent to:

- York Civic Trust

— Make it York

— York BID

— York Retail Forum

— York Blind & Partially Sighted Society

— RNIB

— York Older Citizens Forum

- York Independent Living Network

Whilst the engagement bodies are limited, they represent a significant
number of people, including the community at large. The response to the
questionnaire (attached at Annex A) can be summarised that there
remains a consensus that the prohibition within the BID boundary has



Page 77

been positive with regards to accessibility, ease of movement and visual
amenity. There is support for the continuation of the alternate formats
offered in the policy, e.g. shared boards. Some responses were more
circumspect.

19. Itis considered that the removal of almost all advert boards has
noticeably improved accessibility within the core streets. In addition the
improvement on the historic environment and street scene is considered
very positive. Prior to the prohibition, the usage of advert boards in many
streets was creating an adverse level of obstruction of the public highway
and placed the authority at risk of legal challenge with respect to equality
legislation.

20. As a way to reference some wider economic concerns which were
highlighted prior to the implementation of the policy (e.g. not having
advert boards may have an impact upon overall footfall and spend), data
collected by the council, has shown that the volume of people visiting the
city centre has remained stable despite noticeable impacts across the
retail sector nationally.

21. An additional short survey was forwarded to the Micklegate Traders
Association representative. The survey is attached at Annex A. This
sought to gather a response on whether the businesses have found the
licensed approach to be something which they would wish to continue.
There are over 50 businesses on the street. And currently there are 18
licensed boards. The view of the traders appears that most wish to
continue to have a licence to allow 1 board as per the policy. There has
not been a consensus however on the street, in that some businesses
have not sought to use an advert board and others indicate that they will
not for the time being. Officers have not received any complaints
regarding boards being used inappropriately since February last year.
Such as an alleged obstruction or not being sited in the approved
location.

Outside of the city centre

22. The previous resolution sought an examination of the use of advert
boards outside of the prohibition zone. Officers have looked at a wide
range of streets and areas across the authority area. The focus of these
surveys can be categorised as:

e Main streets immediately adjacent to the prohibition zone, e.g.
Bootham, Lawrence Street, Blossom Street and so on.



23.

24.

25.

26.

Page 78

e The inter urban areas, such as Boroughbridge Road, Fulford
Road, Hull Road, Bishopthorpe Road and so on.

e District Centres, Acomb, Haxby, Huntington.

e Non residential areas — commercial zones such as Clifton Moor,
Monks Cross

¢ Inner and outer villages

The findings from this work are that advert boards are used by
businesses and some communities (e.g. a form of village notice board)
both within the immediate urban areas, the suburbs, commercial areas
and the more rural areas and villages. However, the degree of use is
rarely at a level and density which generates the same issues which
were experienced within the very central area of the city, currently
covered by the policy. From the officer surveys and ongoing
observations, it is considered that the likelihood for obstruction to a
footway, footpath or pedestrian area is limited, this being due to the
reduced number of boards, increased highway space and lesser footfall
overall.

Perhaps the highest levels of use of boards are noticed on the routes
immediately adjacent (and outside) of the prohibition zone, being along
the main arterial routes such as Bootham, Tadcaster Road, Hull Road
and Fulford Road as examples. However as advised above, their
placement has not been seen as presenting a likely hindrance to the safe
use of the highway nor at a scale which has an oppressive visual or
amenity impact.

Within the denser urban areas including the district centres which have
many businesses, again advert boards are seen in use. In many
situations these are sited clear of the footway, as more space is
available, such as a verge or simply on private forecourts and land. Many
examples exist however as with the arterial routes they are not
considered to cause undue impact.

One impact that has been observed is the clustering of boards, this being
not uncommon in some of the commercial areas; an example would be
Clifton Moor. The grouping of boards or similar adverting appears to be
used as a means to both highlight and lay a bread crumb trail to
businesses that are located away from the main highway. It is felt that the
primary issue to be aware of is the potential that these clusters either
cause immediate obstruction of the footways or cycle ways or that they
serve as a possible distraction to drivers. Again it is not considered on



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Page 79

balance that the level of usage would warrant any formal mitigation,
through an extension to the current policy. As has always been and
remains the case, the council, using its powers as local highway
authority, can respond to situations it sees (or that are reported to it) and
take appropriate action. This would involve a visit to the site and
recording and if an advert board or clusters are considered to be creating
an impact then they will be removed and the owner (if known) will be
advised, together with the reasons. This practise is well established in
the outer areas of the city and it is advocated that it remains.

The same advice is recommended to all parts of the city outside of the
BID based city centre prohibition zone.

The sole exception (outside of the caveats in place such as a business at
first floor) being the retention of the licensed approach for Micklegate.
This approach has proven attractive to some businesses and it has
served to manage the use of advent boards within the street. The use
has not presented an unreasonable risk to users of the highway and the
level of demand is acceptable in terms of visual amenity and clutter.

It is of course always feasible that this could be reviewed in the future
and immediate action can still be followed with any business not acting in
compliance with the policy.

Community Impact Assessment - the Executive previously required
that the policy be subject to a CIA, this is attached as Annex B. The
proposed policy has a positive impact on the quality of life indicators for
several communities of identity. Including the elderly, carers of older or
disabled people, disabled people and those with young children. This is
because the policy significantly reduces the presence of ‘A’ Boards within
the zone, meaning the negative impacts they create in obstructing,
hindering, and creating general difficulty for access and mobility, will be
mitigated. As the recommendation here is for the policy to remain in
place, these benefits will continue.

Council Plan

This item contributes to the following priorities and objectives;
- Everyone who lives in the city can enjoy its unique heritage and
range of activities.
- Visitors, businesses and residents are impressed with the quality
of our city.



32.

Page 80

- Residents are protected from harm and vulnerable people feel

safe.

- That we always consider the implications of our decisions,
including in relation to health, communities and equalities.

- Use of evidenced based decision making.

- Engage with communities, listening to their views and taking them

into account.

Implications

Legal The policy addresses the council’s
duties with respect to its Highway,
Planning and Equality
responsibilities.

Financial The resourcing of the policy is

fulfilled through officer activity
within Network Management team,
Transport Services. Fees will
continue to apply for any licensed
boards, in line with the policy. Or
those subject to enforcement.

Human Resources

n/a.

Crime and Disorder

There are no crime and disorder
implications

Sustainability

There are no sustainability
implications

Equalities

In considering this matter the
Council must have regard to the
public sector equality duty. In
summary, those subject to the
equality duty must, in the exercise
of their functions, have due regard
to the need to:

a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination,
harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act.




Page 81

b. Advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a
protected characteristic and those
who do not.

c. Foster good relations between
people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do
not.

The Act explains that having due
regard for advancing equality
involves:

a. Removing or minimising
disadvantages suffered by people
due to their protected
characteristics.

b. Taking steps to meet the needs
of people from protected groups
where these are different from the
needs of other people.

c. Encouraging people from
protected groups to participate in
public life or in other activities
where their participation is
disproportionately low

The policy has previously been
subject to a community impact
assessment which demonstrates a
positive impact from the proposals.

Property There are no property implications

Risk Management

33. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy there are no
risks associated with the recommendations in this report.



Page 82

Contact Details:

Author Chief Officer responsible for the
Richard Bogg report:
Traffic &Highway Development Manager Neil Ferris, Corporate Director of
Tel No. (01904) 551426 Economy and Place
Report v | Date 28/08/2018
Approved
Wards Affected: All |V

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers
None

Annexes
Annex A — ‘A’ Board Questionnaire: City Centre and Micklegate Survey

Annex B — Community Impact Assessment



Page 83

Annex A

Annex A: ‘A’ Board questionnaires
The 'A' Board Policy and City Centre Prohibition

1. Overall, do you consider that the substantial ban on 'A' Board use on
the public highway has had a

positive impact upon the accessibility and ease of movement within
central streets?

Yes

No

Don't know

2. Would you agree that the ban was the right approach, reflecting upon
the significant use of street

advertising, balanced against the limited space offered in many streets
and level of pedestrian activity that

IS experienced?

Yes

No

Don't know

3. Do you consider that the visual amenity of the streets has improved?
(Do they look tidier?)

Yes

No

4. Do you consider that the ban will have had a positive or negative
impact upon the level of footfall

(number of pedestrians) and thus people visiting and shopping within the
city centre?

Positive

Negative

Don't know

1

If yes, can this be evidenced as directly attributable?

5. Do you think that the ban has had a negative impact upon any
businesses in the city centre?

Yes

No

Don't know



Page 84
Annex A

6. Do you consider that the ban should continue as a formalised council
policy position?

Yes

No

Don't know

7. Do you consider that further measures such as the *Shared Board
should remain an option for

businesses to consider?

*A board placed off the highway, for example, on the edge of a lane,
which includes the names of the

businesses on the lane.

Yes

No

Don't know

Micklegate Questionnaire

1. Have you sought licence for an ‘A’ Board outside of your premises?
If no, can you outline the reasons why?

Yes

No

2. If the licensed approach continues, will you apply for a licence?
Yes

No

Don't know

If yes, are you able to evidence this?

3. Do you consider that the use of an 'A' Board has had an impact upon
your business?

Yes

No



Page 85 B
ANNEX B ZH  citv oF

YORK

g COUNCIL

Community Impact Assessment: Summary

1. Name of service, policy, function or criteria being assessed:

‘A’ Board policy (covering ‘A’ Boards and other advertising materials/apparatus).

2. What are the main objectives or aims of the service/policy/function/criteria?

To provide a clear, consistent and reasoned policy approach to ‘A Boards in the city
centre (see map), to control and manage the impacts they generate.

3. Name and Job Title of person completing assessment:

Richard Bogg, Highway Development and Traffic Manager

4. Have any impacts | Community of Summary of impact:
been Identified? Identity ‘A’ Boards can present an obstruction of
(Yes/No) affected: the public highway and as such hinder
Age; Carers of the safe movement of the most
Yes Older or Disabled | vulnerable. It is important that the city

people; Disability | centre is feely available for all users and
the policy gives particular weight to the

needs of pedestrians and it will
significantly reduce accessibility issues

for our communities of interest.

A new policy is being introduced to
regulate and manage (‘A’ board usage).

Groups/organisations will be informed of
the new policy through an awareness

campaign
5. Date CIA completed: 13/06/16
6. Signed off by:
7. | am satisfied that this service/policy/function has been successfully impact
assessed.
Name:

Position:



Page 86

Date:

8. Decision-making body: Date: Decision Details:
The Executive 25/08/16

Send the completed signed off document to ciasubmission@york.gov.uk It will
be published on the intranet, as well as on the council website.

Actions arising from the Assessments will be logged on Verto and progress
updates will be required



mailto:ciasubmission@york.gov.uk

4!;‘{; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Community Impact Assessment (CIA)

Vs,

Community Impact Assessment Title: ‘A’ Boards Policy

What evidence is available to suggest that the proposed service, policy, function or criteria could have a negative (N),
positive (P) or no (None) effect on quality of life outcomes? (Refer to guidance for further details)

Can negative impacts be justified? For example: improving community cohesion; complying with other legislation or
enforcement duties; taking positive action to address imbalances or under-representation; needing to target a
particular community or group e.g. older people. NB. Lack of financial resources alone is NOT justification!

Community of Identity: Age

. . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)

/8 abed

Access to services; Individual, family
Stakeholder Consultation has taken place, with and social life

representatives of York Older Peoples Assembly and
York Access Group.

Can negative

Details of Impact . Reason/Action Lead Officer Completion
impacts be




justified? Date

Negative: Presently ‘A’ Boards are Positive: the proposed policy will
tolerated in the city; this creates many No, substantially reduce the presence of Date when
issues for access when walking within the | impacts | regular boards within the city centre policy is
core shopping areas, with boards are of a | streets; and will prescribe a clear set implemente
presenting an obstruction and hazard, scale of criteria for those which could be d; .
these problems can be exacerbated for considere | subject to a licence. Richard Bogg anticipated
frail/elderly people who may require d largely | Groups/organisations will be informed 9ugu§t o
aids/support or indeed those with children |  tgbe | of the new policy through an 016; V;’]'t
in buggies/pushchairs. unreasona | awareness campaign ﬁnnpﬁ)'lcé?rt]enta

ble. tion period.

g abed



Community of Identity: Carers of Older or Disabled People
- . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
Access to services; Individual, family
Stakeholder Consultation has taken place, with and social life P
representatives of YOPA, YAG and York Blind &
partially Sighted Society.
Can negative Completion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer
S Date
justified?
Positive: the proposed policy will
Negative: Presently ‘A’ Boards are substantially reduce the presence of o
tolerated in the city; this creates many regular boards within the streets; and &
issues for access when Wa|k|ng within the will prescribe a clear set of criteria for @
core Shopping areas, this being ] No, those which could be subject to a %
potentially more difficult for carers of Impacts | jicence.
disabled adults and children, who for are ofa Groups/organisations will be informed | _.
example may have additional equipment, S(_:ale_ of the new policy through an Richard Bogg | As above
mobility aids or are simply in a larger which is awareness campaign.
group, which generates increased unr%?esona

challenges with access and movement
within busy street environments.




Community of Identity: Disability

Customer Impact

Staff Impact

Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
Stakeholder Consultation has taken place, with Access to services; Individual, family
representatives of YOPA, YAG and York Blind & and social life P
Partially Sighted Society.
Can negative Combletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
o Date
justified?
Negative: Presently ‘A’ Boards are Positive: the proposed policy will
tolerated in the city; this creates many substantially reduce the presence of
issues for disabled people access when regular boards within the streets;
moving within the core shopping areas, And will prescribe a clear set of
with boards presenting a particular hazard No, criteria for those which could be
for example to those with impaired impacts | subject to a licence.
sight/vision, who have to navigate are of a | Groups/organisations will be informed
increasing numbers of temporary scale of the new policy through an Richard Bogg | As above
advertising materials, which are sited whichis | gwareness campaign.
randomly, often close the building line, unreasona
which is the regular space/routes used by ble.

people with such disabilities, as it should
provide a greater level of safety, comfort
and thus increase confidence .

06 abed




Community of Identity: Gender

Customer Impact

Staff Impact

Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
None
Can negative Completion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. g Date
justified?

Community of Identity: Gender Reassignment

Customer Impact

Staff Impact

o
Q

«Q
@D
©
=

Evi . Li .
vidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
None
Can negative Completion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer Dr;te

justified?




Community of Identity: Marriage & Civil Partnership

Customer Impact

Staff Impact

Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
None
Can negative Completion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. g Date
justified?

26 obed



Community of Identity: Pregnancy / Maternity
. . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
Access to services; Individual, family
Whilst Consualtion has not been undertaken with this | and social life
Col, the issue of obstruction is considered to present a
genuine issue for people with prams/pushchairs, as P
the ease to manoeuvre within the streets is negatively
impacted by ‘A’ Boards.
Can negative Combletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
o Date U
justified? 8
Positive: the proposed policy will ®
Negative: Presently ‘A’ Boards are N substantially reduce the presence of S
tolerated in the city; this creates many O, regular boards within the streets.
; . oy Impacts
issues for access when walking within the
core shopping areas, with boards are of a .
) . s scale Richard Bogg | As above
presenting an obstruction and hazard; this which is
will increase when having to manoeuvre
: : : unreasona
prams, buggies, push chairs or walking ble

with small children/toddlers.




Community of Identity: Race
: . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
None
Can negative Combletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
L Date
justified?
o
D
Community of Identity: Religion / Spirituality / Belief o
Customer Impact| Staff Impact f

Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
None
Can negative Completion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer DZte

justified?




Community of Identity: Sexual Orientation

Customer Impact

Staff Impact

Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
None
Can negative Completion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. g Date
justified?

G6 obed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97 Agenda Item 7

COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member for 13 September 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Assistant Director, Transport, Highways and Environment
Hempland Avenue - Speed Management Scheme
Summary

1. This report presents options to address concerns about the speed of
vehicles on Hempland Avenue.

Recommendations
2. The Executive Member is asked to:

Approve Option 3, junction realignment only. Progress the
scheme to consultation with local residents, ward members and
other local interest groups. Any objections to be reported back
to a future Executive Member for Transport and Planning
Decision Session for a decision on implementation.

Reason: To provide a suitable speed reduction measure which can be
monitored post implementation without introducing potentially
unpopular vertical traffic calming measures or extra sign clutter
within an existing 20mph limit.

Background

3. The Council has previously determined that this location should be a
20mph road.

4. Hempland Avenue was referred to the Transport Projects team for
investigation via the Speed Management Partnership following a review
of speed data. The speed limit on Hempland Avenue is 20mph. The
results of the speed survey show mean speeds within the guidelines for
a 20mph limit. The 85" percentile speeds are slightly higher with a
recorded Eastbound speed of 24mph, and Westbound speeds of 26mph



Page 98

which is a little high. 68% of the vehicles travelling on Hempland Avenue
are exceeding the posted speed limit. Casualty accident records show

there have been no injury accidents on Hempland Avenue in the last 3
years.

Hempland Avenue

fang Hef

Location Plan

To address the concerns about vehicle speeds a scheme was developed
as shown in Annex A and issued for consultation with relevant CYC
officers and local ward members. This scheme comprises:

e Installation of four ‘20’ roundel markings along Hempland Avenue, one
being at the eastern gateway.



Page 99

e Installation of three ‘20’ repeater signs to be located on existing lighting
columns.

eInstallation of ‘20’ roundel marking at Dale’s Lane junction with Heworth
Road.

eRealignment of kerbs at the junction with Hempland Lane, to narrow the
mouth of the junction. This aims to make the right turn onto Hempland
Avenue more acute and therefore slow vehicles down when making
the turn reducing westbound speeds along the rest of Hempland
Avenue.

Estimated cost - £17k

During consultation, a concern was raised that the proposal would
increase the level of signage clutter in the area.

Following discussion with officers a decision was taken to consider and
present alternative scheme options which do not include additional
signing or markings associated with the 20 mph limit. The alternative
scheme shown in Annex B was then developed which comprises:

e Installation of five full width road humps.

eRealignment of kerbs at the junction with Hempland Lane, to narrow the
mouth of the junction. This aims to make the right turn onto Hempland
Avenue more acute and therefore slow vehicles down when making
the turn and hopefully reduce westbound speeds along the rest of
Hempland Avenue.

Estimated cost - £45k

Consultation

8.

10.

Consultation was only undertaken for the option shown in Annex A.
Responses are recorded below with officer responses as required.

Principal Engineer — Highways Maintenance: Questioned whether a
dropped crossing with tactile paving will be provided at the junction of
Hempland Avenue and Hempland Lane when the kerbs are realigned at
the junction mouth.

Officer Response: Dropped crossing with tactile paving will be provided
but was not shown on the consultation drawing. It is included on the
Annexes provided.



11.

Page 100

Clir. C. Funnell: Approves of the signing and junction realignment
scheme (Annex A).

Options

12.

13.

14.

15.

Option 1: approve the junction realignment and signing scheme shown in
Annex A.

Option 2: approve the junction realignment and traffic calming scheme
shown in Annex B and provide further funding allocation to progress.

Option 3: approve the junction realignment only.

In all cases, approve the option to proceed to consultation with local
residents, ward members and other local interest groups. Any objections
to be reported back to a future Executive Member for Transport and
Planning Decision Session for a decision on implementation.

Analysis

16.

17.

18.

A significant factor in the higher vehicle speeds on Hempland Avenue is
the junction with Hempland Lane. The current alignment allows right
turning vehicles to enter Hempland Avenue with little to no reduction in
speed if there are no vehicles approaching the junction from the south.
Therefore, the realignment of the junction should help to reduce the
westbound vehicle speeds and is considered beneficial with or without
the other scheme elements.

Hempland Lane is a through route for eastbound traffic only, westbound
traffic can only proceed as far as Forest Way due to the one way section
of Dales Lane. Eastbound drivers are possibly choosing this route to
reduce their journey times by avoiding more congested routes, therefore
signing and lining may have minimal impact. Local users who are already
aware of the 20mph limit are also unlikely to change their habits due to
additional signing alone.

Providing traffic calming (Option 2) would have a greater impact on
vehicle speeds, however it is expensive and may be difficult to justify in
value for money terms. This option is also not affordable from the
2018/19 budget allocations. If the Executive Member favours the
progression of the traffic calming option, additional funding would need to
be allocated as the estimated cost of the option exceeds the current
budget available in the 2018/19 programme. The introduction of vertical



Page 101

traffic calming measures is also likely to be unpopular with local
residents.

19. The junction improvements could be undertaken without any of the
supporting measures of options 1 or 2. This reduces the required budget
to £16k but may only have limited impact close to the junction area. This
element of the scheme could be progressed and then monitored to
review the impact of the scheme. This review would then be shared with
the Speed Management Partnership for them to decide if further action is
required such as option 1 and 2.

Council Plan

20. This section explains how the proposals relate to the Council’s 3 key
priorities, as set out in the Council’'s Plan 2015-19.

Key Priority - a council that listens to residents - to ensure it delivers the
services they want and works in partnership with local communities.

The Speed Management Partnership is based solely on investigating
complaints from residents, all options presented include consultation with
local residents and their representatives to ensure their views are leading
the decisions made.

Implications
21. The following implications have been considered:

. Financial — The scheme costs of the recommended option have
been estimated at £16,000 including staff costs. This is affordable
from the safety schemes budget in the 18/19 capital programme.

. Human Resources (HR) - There are no HR implications.

. One Planet Council / Equalities - There are no One Planet Council /
equalities implications.

« Legal - There are no legal implications.

« Crime and Disorder - There are no crime and disorder implications.

. Information Technology (IT) - There are no IT implications.

. Property - There are no property implications.



Page 102

Risk Management

22. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the following
risks associated with the recommendation in this report have been
identified and described in the following points, and set out in the table
below:

23. Authority reputation —This risk is in connection with the public perception
of the Council if the recommended scheme doesn'’t significantly reduce
speeds and is assessed at 8.

Risk Category | Impact |Likelihood | Score

Organisation/ Minor | Unlikely 8
Reputation

24. Itis recognised that the Option 3 recommendation in the report may not
have a significant impact on vehicle speeds along the full length of the
road, however the other options could be introduced at a later date if
required.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Ben Potter Neil Ferris

Engineer Corporate Director — Economy and Place

Transport Projects

Tel No. 01904 553496 Report , |Date 05/09/18
Approved

Wards Affected: Heworth

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers
None



Page 103

Annexes

Annex A — Option 1 - junction realignment and signing scheme
Annex B — Option 2 - junction realignment and traffic calming scheme
List of Abbreviations Used in this Report

CYC - City of York Councll
SMP — Speed Management Partnership



This page is intentionally left blank



Scale 1:500

Xk

5

iRt

L]

—REALIGNMENT
OF THE KERB TO
NARROW THE
MOUTH OF THE
JUNCTION

—

MNSTALL ‘20
H ROUNDEL

MARKING

ANSTALL '20'
REPEATER
SIGN ON LC6

A

e

du
{LﬁEXlS’I’TNG '20' REPEA'I\'ER\SIGN

\

\

B\ W\ W\ A
L[Scale 1:1000

Apg pJom 3 4

\o

INSTALL '20'
ROUNDEL

MARKING

EXISTING '20'
REPEATER

SIGN

19

g <S/PEED LIMIT SIGN
A2 <O b 2
~
&% NS & Lt =s\
Ny 2
f 9

Sign Detail

)

Height

Sign Reference

300mm repeater
300mm

Width

300mm

Area

0.07 m2

Material

Class RA2 (12899-1:2007)

Mount Height 2300
* Area reduced for rounded coners.

|ommmwmnwﬂmmsu~um1mmw|

PROPOSED SPEED HUMPS

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING

PROPOSED HALF BATTER KERBS

PROPOSED DROPPED KERBS

PROPOSED TRANSITION KERBS

PROPOSED EDGING KERBS

R 3 > 5
[\ 2 Qq}
e - "
INSTALL 20
ROUNDEL
. MARKING
v,
N
A 5/ o yy
—ANSTALL '20° P \"hU“w \\\ \\ {
REPEATER /4/ —EXISTING 20 K
\SIGN ON LCa] A

THNSTALL ‘20
REPEATER
SIGN ON LC1

5%

OPTION

1T

ISTIT 7 JT A\

1
g HARRISTI

INSTALL 207 =¥ =™

ROUNDEL

ARG || 1

=) CITY OF

YO

co

Eﬂnmmm#n Streat, York, YOI1 308

RK

UNCIL

Project

Hempland Avenue
SMS 17/18

Drawing

Signing,

Kerb Realighment

Lining and

Drawn by AW Date: Dec 2017
Checksd by BP Dats: 18-12-2017
Authorised by Date:

Drawing No. Revislon

TP-170011-0PTO01

Drawing Scale:

AS SHOWN A3

CAD Filename:

Plot Scale:

LA\DOCUMENT\Transport ProJects\ProJects\10 - Safety & Accesslillty Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1611000 Hempland Ave\Drawings\Hempland Avenue_option 1 - Signing, Lining and Kerb Realignment.dwg

GOT abed


AutoCAD SHX Text_469
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
38a

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
Field Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
OAKLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
Boro Const & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
HEMPLAND LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
HEMPLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
OAKLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
HEMPLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
OAKLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
CHESTNUT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
FOREST WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
LIME AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Heworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
HARRISON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
14.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
DALE'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
HEWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
HEWORTH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
Drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
Checked by

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
Plot Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
CAD Filename:

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
Transport Projects

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO11 3DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
www.york.gov.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
Drawing Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
Drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
Authorised by

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
Checked by

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1611000 Hempland Ave\Drawings\Hempland Avenue_option 1 - Signing, Lining and Kerb Realignment.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
TP-170011-OPT01

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
Hempland Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
SMS 17/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
Signing, Lining and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
Kerb Realignment

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
AW

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
Dec 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
BP

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
18-12-2017

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
Scale 1:500

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
Scale 1:1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
Sign Detail


This page is intentionally left blank



BEEERS

\

\

2

THE KERB TO
NARROW THE
MOUTH OF THE
JUNCTION

IREALIGNMENT OF

F-PROPOSED
ROAD HUMP

N\

rPROPOSED
ROAD HUMP

20[ 18

19

©

B\ W\ W\ A
L[Scale 1:1000

& 0
W\
% )
7?
Z
2
%
2 \R
PROPOSED
ROAD HUMP
B/

PROPOSED
ROAD HUMP

\

Apg pJom 3 4

(XOPTION 2

AP NP AN z

PROPOSED SPEED HUMPS

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING

PROPOSED HALF BATTER KERBS

PROPOSED DROPPED KERBS

PROPOSED TRANSITION KERBS

PROPOSED EDGING KERBS

|ommmwmnwﬂmmsu~um1mmw|

Revison | By Dale Description
‘E CITY OF
YORK
COUNCIL
Transport Projects

hm_mnmmmtn

Project
Hempland Avenue
SMS 17/18

Drawing

Proposed Road Humps
and Kerb Realignment

Drawn by AW Date: Aug 17
Checked by Date:

Authorised by Date:

Drawing No. Revislon
TP-170011-0PT02

Drawing Scale: AS SHOWN A3
CAD Filename: Plot Scale:

LA\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\ProJects\10 - Safety &

ty Schemes\Speed

g t\17_18\YK1611000 Hempland Ave\Drawings\Hempland Avenue_option 2 — Road Humps and Kerb Realignment.dwg

/0T abed


AutoCAD SHX Text_629
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
38a

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
Field Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
OAKLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
Boro Const & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
HEMPLAND LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
HEMPLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
OAKLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
HEMPLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
OAKLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
CHESTNUT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
FOREST WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
LIME AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
Drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
Checked by

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
Plot Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
CAD Filename:

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
Transport Projects

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
Eco Depot, Hazel Court, James Street, York, YO11 3DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
www.york.gov.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
c CROWN COPYRIGHT.City of York Council OS Licence No. 1000 20818

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
Drawing Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
Drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
Authorised by

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Checked by

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
L:\DOCUMENT\Transport Projects\Projects\10 - Safety & Accessibility Schemes\Speed management\17_18\YK1611000 Hempland Ave\Drawings\Hempland Avenue_option 2 - Road Humps and Kerb Realignment.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
Hempland Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
SMS 17/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
Proposed Road Humps

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
and Kerb Realignment

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
AW

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
Aug 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
TP-170011-OPT02

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
Scale 1:500

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
Scale 1:1000


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109 Agenda Item 8

COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member of 13 September 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of Assistant Director, Transport, Highways and Environment

Public Rights of Way — Proposed improvements to the rights of way
network in the vicinity of Knapton

Summary

1. A request for authorisation to make concurrent extinguishment and
creation orders under sections 118 and 26 of the Highways Act 1980, to
extinguish Public Footpath, Knapton No 2 and create a new bridleway
linking Main Street, Knapton to the southern end of North Field Lane,
utilising the current underpass to cross the A1237 (Annex 1: Location
Plan and Annex 2: Proposed Order Plan).

2. The proposal will provide a safer crossing of the A1237 and will form the
final stage of an off-road walking, riding and cycling route that will link
Rufforth, Knapton, Acomb, Upper Poppleton and the Northfield Lane
business parks.

Recommendations
3. The Executive Member is asked to:

1) Authorise the making of concurrent extinguishment and creation
orders under sections 118 and 26 of the Highways Act 1980. If no
objections are received, or are received and withdrawn, to authorise
the confirmation of the orders as unopposed orders. If objections are
received and not withdrawn to bring the proposal back to Decision
Session for further consideration.

Reason: To legally put in place the proposed improvements.



Page 110

Background

4. In September 2002 the council, through a Committee decision, authorised
the making of public path orders to legally affect changes to the rights of
way network in the vicinity of the then council owned New Farm, Knapton,
York. Unfortunately, although Committee authorisation was given for the
Orders to be made, the scheme was shelved due to delays relating to the
sale of New House Farm site (how New House Covert), and then again
due to lack of resources to take the scheme forward.

5. New House Farm was eventually sold in March 2006. Planning consent
(ref 01/02582/GRG3) was given for the conversion of 3 barns on the site
to be converted to 3 dwellings. The reminder of the site was granted
outline consent for residential development (ref 00/02186/GRG3). A
condition of the above consent required the provision on the ground of
the committee authorised bridleway along the development’s private
access road from Main Street through to the council owned fields beyond
(Condition 13: details of highway works). The highway details were given
approval in January 2010.

6. A second period of pre-order consultation was then carried out in 2011
during which an objection was received. The proposal was amended in
light of this objection and a further period of pre-order consultation was
carried out, during which another objection was received from a local user
group. Although the objection was eventually withdrawn the proposal
could again not be taken forward as the funding for the works had lapsed.

7. Funding for the scheme has now been allocated from the Transport
Capital Programme as part of the ongoing improvements to the A1237.
In brief, the proposal is to create a new bridleway link (bold dashed line)
between the village of Knapton and North Moor Lane, which will utilise
the existing ringroad underpass in the vicinity of the village allottments
(Annex 2: Proposed Order Plan).

8. Itis then proposed to concurrently extinguish the existing public footpath
(bold solid black line) that links Knapton Main Street with Moor Lane
bridleway and which crosses the A1237 at grade.

9. In order to encourage the greatest number of users, the proposed new
bridleway will have a dual surface that will allow year round, all-weather
use. Where there is currently a natural surface, the path will be
constructed with a 2 metre wide conventional bitumen macadam (bitmac)
surface with an adjacent 2 metre wide firm, but unsealed path for use by



Page 111

horses. The proposed 4 metre wide path will have 0.5 metre wide verges
on either side with fenced or hedged boundaries. The path will be
constructed to allow access for maintenance vehicles. A section that also
needs to accommodate occasional use by farm traffic will be built to a
suitable specification. Suitable barriers will be installed at either end to
prevent unauthorised use of the path by vehicles and ensure the safety of
people using it.

Consultation

10.

11.

12.

Due to the time that has elapsed since the last period of pre-order
consultation (2011) a further, shorter, period of consultation has recently
been carried out (Annex 3: Consultation responses). No objections have
been received.

Ward Councillors and Group Spokespersons have been consulted in
respect of the proposal:

Councillor | Gillies: ‘Happy to support Option 1°.

Councillor C Steward: No comments received.

Councillor A D’Agorne: No comments received.

Councillor S Barnes: No comments received.

Councillor S Fenton: No comments received.

A further period of statutory consultation (28 days) will commence should

authorisation be granted to make the orders under s26 and s118 of the
Highways Act 1980.

Options

1) Authorise the making of concurrent extinguishment and creation
orders under sections 118 and 26 of the Highways Act 1980. If no
objections are received, or are received and withdrawn, to authorise
the confirmation of the orders as unopposed orders. If objections are
received and not withdrawn to bring the proposal back to Decision
Session for further consideration.

2) Do not authorise the making of the orders and abandon the scheme.



Page 112

Analysis

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Option 1 will legally put in place the proposed improvements. The
creation of the new bridleway, utilising the existing ringroad underpass
will provide a safer method of crossing the A1237 for walkers, horse
riders and cyclists. Currently the only way for all users to cross the ring
road is by using the central pedestrian refuge located at the junction with
Knapton Main Street and the ringroad. This crossing is widely
considered to be unsuitable due to more than 20,000 vehicles using this
section of the ringroad each day.

At the same time the council will extinguish the existing public footpath
that links Knapton Main Street with Moor Lane bridleway. This footpath
requires walkers to cross the A1237 at grade. Although irrelevent to the
legislative requirements that need to be met when extinguishing a public
right of way, it should be noted that the footpath has been unusable for
many years from the Knapton end because it has been obstructed by a
garage where it leaves Main Street.

As well as providing a safer and more convenient crossing of the A1237,
the creation of the bridleway will open up this part of the rights of way
network to more users because bridleways are open to horse riders and
cyclists as well as walkers. The proposed surface treatment will also
provide a more accessible surface for all users. The addition of this
bridleway will mean that the existing public footpath will no longer be
needed therefore meeting the criteria set out by section 118 of the
Highways Act 1980.

If the scheme goes ahead, the new bridleway will provide the final
section of the long awaited off-road cycle route linking Rufforth with
Knapton and the wider area such as Acomb, York city centre, and the
Northminster and Oakwood Business Parks. This will enable more
sustainable modes of travel to and from these locations.

It should be noted that, there is a provision in the Highways Act 1980 s28
for the payment of compensation to anyone who is able to show that the
value of his interest in land is depreciated, or that he has suffered
damage by being disturbed in his enjoyment of land as a consequence of
a creation order. Compensation may also be payable consequent on the
coming into operation of an extinguishment order, to which the provisions
of s28 are also applied by s121(2).



18.

19.

Page 113

It should be noted that the proposal is for concurrent extinguishment and
creation orders to be made. If the proposal is successful, the
extinguishment of the footpath will compensate the landowner for any
loss of land as a result of the construction of the new bridleway. If
objections are received to one of the orders and they cannot be resolved,
the other order will not be confirmed and the scheme will not go ahead.
With regard to other landowners affected by the extinguishment of the
path, there will be no detrimental effect on the land this path serves as a
result of it being extinguished.

Option 2 will mean that the proposed scheme will not go ahead and the
current at grade crossing of the ring road for walkers via the public
footpath and for all users at the pedestrian refuge will continue.

Council Plan

20.

21.

22.

As set out in the Council Plan 2015-19: One of our key priorities is to
work towards “A Prosperous City for all: Where local businesses can
thrive and residents have good quality jobs, housing and opportunities.

One of the aims is to have; Efficient and affordable transport links that
enable residents and businesses to access key services and
opportunities. This will be met through:

* Steps taken to improve air quality

* Continued inward investment in transport

In the next 4 years we will: Work to ensure York gets the best deal from
all regional partners, including in relation to investment in transport
infrastructure.

The authorisation of the making of the legal orders required to put the
route on the ground, will ensure the scheme will be contributing to the
above aims and 4 year work programme. Especially in regard to
improving air quality by encouraging more sustainable modes of transport
through the provision of a quality off-road walking and cycling route,
sections of which have been funded by regional funding streams.

23. Implications

eFinancial The scheme has an allocation in the Capital Funding
Programme, which will fund both the legal orders required, officer time
and the construction of the bridleway.



Page 114

The council as highway authority will be responsible for the
maintenance of the surface of the new bridleway, including the culvert
bridge and any barriers/path furniture. Any adjacent hedging and
fencing will be maintained by the landowners. The section of the route
through New House Covert will continue to be privately maintained.

Should objections be received to either Order and should the council
decide to continue with it, the Order would be referred to the Secretary
of State for determination. This may lead to a Public Inquiry or Hearing
which the council will be required to fund. Approximate cost £3,000 to
£5,000.

eHuman Resources (HR) Scheme to be delivered using existing
resources.

¢One Planet Council / Equalities See Annex 4. Community Impact
Assessment.

eLegal Under the Highways Act 1980 the council, as highway authority,
has powers to extinguish and create footpaths, bridleways and
restricted byways.

When creating a right of way under s26 the authority must be satisfied
that it is expedient that a path should be created. In considering the
matter it must have regard to the extent to which the path or way would
add to the convenience or enjoyment of a substantial section of the
public, or to the convenience of persons resident in the area. It must
also have regard to the effect that the creation would have on the rights
of persons interested in the land, and in doing so should take into
account the provisions in s28 under which compensation may be
payable. It must also have regard to the needs of agriculture, forestry,
and the desirability of conserving flora, fauna and geographical and
physiographical features. Before confirming a creation order the
council must have regard to any material provision of the council’s
rights of way improvement plan.

When making a public path extinguishment order under s118 the
council can have only one reason in law and that is that it appears to it
expedient on the ground that the footpath is not needed for public use.
If there are no outstanding objections to the making of the order, the
council when considering whether to confirm the order needs to
consider whether it is expedient to do so having regard to the extent to
which it appears that the footpath is likely to be used by the public and



Page 115

having regard to the effect which the extinguishment would have on the
land crossed by the footpath, account being taken of the provision as to
compensation contained in s28. The council must also have regard to
any material provision of a rights of way improvement plan prepared by
the council.

S118 also allows extinguishment orders to be considered concurrently
with creation orders. If considered concurrently the orders must each
stand on their own. S118(5) provides that where an extinguishment
order is being considered concurrently with a creation order then in
considering the extent to which the path the subject of the order would
be likely to be used by the public the council may (but not must) have
regard to the extent to which the creation would provide an alternative
path.

It is regarded that this proposal meets the requirements of the above
legislation (see Analysis paras 12-16).

eCrime and Disorder: Itis proposed to install appropriate barriers will
be placed at either end of the path to prevent unlawful use.

eInformation Technology (IT): There are no known IT implications
eProperty: The new bridleway route will cross council owned land which
is the subject of leases which will have to be renegotiated with the
occupiers to allow for the implementation of the proposals, see Annex
5: Property map.
eOther There are no other known implications
Risk Management
24. In compliance with the authority’s Risk Management Strategy, Option A

IS subject to internal budgetary pressures relating to ongoing
maintenance of the new route.



Page 116

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Alison Newbould Neil Ferris

Rights of Way officer Corporate Director of Economy and Place

Transport Service

Tel No.01904 551481 Report | ~|Date 05.09.18
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Implication: Financial Implication: Legal
Patrick Looker Sandra Branigan
Finance Manager Senior Solicitor

Tel No. 01904 551633 Tel No. 01904 551440

Implication: Property

Nicholas Collins

Property Manager - Commercial
Tel No: 01904 552167

Wards Affected: Rural West York Ward
For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Highways Act 1980 s26 and s118
Planning Ref: 01/02582/GRG3
Planning Ref: 00/02186/GRG3

Annexes

Annex 1. Location Plan

Annex 2: Proposed Order Plan

Annex 3. Consultation Responses
Annex 4: Community Impact Assessment
Annex 5: Property Map



452000 453000 454000 455000 456000 457000 458000

454000

453000

Y ' >\ e NCon TR
g NUpper AR X AN SR TVRNG
High; N on (0] p\ietoné > p’\éi
] SHENZE Annex 1: Location Plan Y
c “p S— 3
range Fm|%> : T ! ‘
[t A X
h » “PPEMotel e Nus 3 }“}‘ S\
—— LINTTTTRTINY A =X ?" :
- e e 18 & 5 ’/
-y
Prospect ||

untsham

454000

453000

452000

451000

450000

I T— - -
Yy « e ]
(f — Airfield ™7

Public Rights of Way — Proposed improvements to the
rights of way network in vicinity of Knapton

COUNCIL

Scale 1:24,780 Drawn By: Date:

YO1 6GA
Telephone: 01904 551550

West Offices, Station Rise, York,

Public Rights of Way Reference: Drawing No.

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2018

452000

453000 454000 455000

-
b

oQ

g

N

2
=
\l

o

g

2

g

2

2



This page is intentionally left blank



455300 455400 455500 455600 455700 455800 455900 456000 456100
T = — % / 1
Key g | Annex 2:
| IR ‘
s | | | Proposed Order Plan o
§ || Public Footpth to be extinguished ’»{ LB | §
3 & - . <
Public Bridleway to be created mmmEw ’, Pedestrian
crossing
Public Bridleway unaffected —+—t—+
o (=
2 on Moor S
4
7
IA'N) /,/,,7' * Knapton Grangeg clg
\\ ord®
N
\\\ o
2 <2
’r,’ (@)
8 S
N N
3 <
= . =]
S S
b N
2 | Rural West \ o | X Hlﬂ?hrth <2
| Knapton CP
P Proposed Highways Act 1980 s118 Extinguishment of Public Footpath, Knapton No 2 'r,,
2 ciTy OF Proposed Highways Act1980 s26 Creation of Public Bridleway
R COUNCIL Scale 1:2,500 Drawn By:AN Date2s/06/2018 || |
o | o
=] . . . ] =]
2| West Offices. Station Rise. York Public Rights of Way Reference: Drawing No. n,’ =
*I| yoreca o | )
Telephone: 01904 551550 Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2018 i
455300 455400 455500 455600 455700 455800 455900 456000 456100




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 121
Annex 3

Annex 3: Pre-Order Consultation Responses

BHS Access Officer - the BHS thoroughly supports this multi user
solution to enable more people by all non motorised means of accessing
the countryside on the outskirts of York. Thank you for all your efforts in
this and we look forward to the finished results.

Byways and Bridleways Trust - | am delighted that there is now a
chance of creating a safe bridleway link across the ring road, and hope
you can bring it to pass. The specification is adequate. On behalf of the
Byways and Bridleways Trust | give the scheme my full support.

York Ramblers Footpath Secretary - We had accepted this in principle
at our last York ramblers Group Footpath sub-committee meeting in
May.

Not had chance to look at the details, but wish to point out that the
current crossing point was constructed for cyclists and horse riders, not
just pedestrians. If this refuge is considered dangerous for users, what
about those footpath & bridleway crossings where there are no refuges?
It is infinitely safer than no refuge and has certainly improved access to
Poppleton and Moor Lane from Knapton and Acomb. Not everyone likes
using underpasses and the existing refuge should be retained.

Officer comment: the current crossing is widely considered to be
unsuitable, especially for horses and cyclists. The current refuge will
remain in place.

Does it need fencing on both sides of the path? Hopefully there will be
no hedging on the field side of the proposed route, to avoid a tunnel
effect. Who looks after the existing roadside hedging, CYC or Mr
Lancaster? We assume it is CYC, but may be wrong.

Officer comment: The current farmer maintains the hedge that runs
along the road and it is understood, will be also maintain the new hedge
and fencing; a decent width for the new bridleway has been allowed, to
ensure this is possible. As well as providing additional valuable habitat
for wildlife, the new boundary features will help prevent trespass on to
adjacent land, which is a concern for the farmer.

We understand the field access from the Outer Ring Road is to be
closed, as part of this scheme, with consequent changes to the ground
levels hereabouts.

Officer comment: It is planned to remove the field access off the A1237
and change the levels so it is more suitable for the bridleway.




Page 122
Annex 3

Where will the path go in relation to the electricity pole and tensioner(s)?
Officer comment: The bridleway will smoothly skirt round the telegraph
pole straining wires. We did look at getting them moved but were
advised that it would be too costly.

We believe part of the path from the Village Street towards the
underpass is already a Definitive Bridleway, but not shown as such on
the York Local View mapping.

Officer comment: There is no bridleway recorded on the Definitive Map
and Statement at Knapton village. | am aware that it appeared on
Ordnance Survey mapping and LocalView for a time. But it has been
removed due to the fact that it was incorrect. It is not known why it was
recorded by Ordnance Survey as no legal orders have been made and
we have not informed them of any changes at this location. It was
actually shown on a different alignment on both documents to the one
that has always been proposed.

New House Covert resident - As a resident of The Covert, located on
the entry, we have a number of concerns and queries about the
proposal.

Barrier - We assume there will be no barrier at the entrance to The
Covert, but that it will be positioned at the rear, after the block paving at
the entrance to the field.

Officer comment: a barrier will be placed at the entrance to the field,
after the block paving.

Safety - of residents and users of the bridleway is of paramount
importance. There are still a large number of speeding drivers using
Knapton Main Street as rat run, increasing activity at the entrance of The
Covert, and the likelihood of a serious accident to users of the bridleway,
exiting onto Main Street. Residents are aware of the danger and take
extra precautions, but suitable signage and possibly a well positioned
mirror may alleviate the risk. Open access to our drive is on both Main
Street and near the entrance to The Covert. Currently, paperboys use
our drive as a short cut. An increase in this activity is totally
unacceptable as our safety and that of our pet dog is important.

As a private development, children play in The Covert and dogs are
allowed an element of freedom. Horses passing through The Covert may



Page 123
Annex 3

be startled by the dogs, whilst dog owners will do their best to avoid this,
they will not wish to enter into conflict with horse riders, after all, the
dogs have been here longer than the bridleway. Nor would we expect to
change our lifestyle and freedom of the children to accommodate
increased activity from cyclists, walkers and horse riders.

Officer comment: The bridleway will be signed with a wooden finger post
where it leaves Main Street. | understand that the request for a highway
mirror would not be supported by the authority.

With regards to people using the drive as a short cut, the bridleway sign
will clearly show users where the bridleway legally leaves the road. Any
other route across private land is trespass against the owners of the land
and is a civil matter ie between the landowner and whoever is
committing trespass.

Bridleways often pass through farms yards and developments where
there are dogs and children, and horse riders are aware of the possibility
of their presence. There shouldn’t be a problem in this regard, nor
should there be a need for a change in lifestyle of residents as a result of
the bridleway.

Definition of bridleway - It is important that access via The Covert is
clearly defined, to avoid transit users passing close to houses and
driveways where there may be reversing cars.

Officer comment: The route will have a directional signpost off Main
Street and will be clearly way-marked. A condition of the original
planning consent was the provision of a bridleway along the private New
House Covert. The bridleway was delineated on the ground by different
surface treatment (channel).

Dog/Horse fouling within The Covert - There is an ongoing issue with the
recreation field at the rear of The Covert, particularly around the use by
dogs and the depositing of dog mess. This will be compounded by dogs
and horses, accessing through The Covert. What will be done to ensure
cleanliness within The Covert (a private development) and who will be
responsible for clearing up horse mess?

Officer comment: As the bridleway will be a public highway, it will be a
criminal offence to allow a dog to defecate on it. As a public place, any
incidents of dog-fouling may be reported to the Council. It is not known




Page 124
Annex 3

what the arrangements are for the recreation field, but the parish council
could be approached to have a look at installing a dog bin.

With regards to horse droppings, this isn’t a criminal offence and there is
no requirement for horse-riders to clear it away.

Parking - Public parking is not permitted within The Covert. We have
concerns that dog walkers and building contractors will use The Covert
as a public car park. Furthermore, if construction work is undertaken via
The Covert, what consultation and consideration will there be for
residents in terms of vehicular access, debris and mud deposited within
The Covert and damage to block paving?

Officer comment: if access for construction vehicles is to be along The
Covert a dilapidation survey will be carried out to ensure that should any
damage be caused, it may be rectified to the original standard. There
may be the opportunity to access the site across council owned land
from the A1237. This possibility will be investigated.

Maintenance of The Covert - Who will be responsible for the
maintenance of the block paving in The Covert when the bridleway is
complete?

Officer comment: As the main use of The Covert will continue to be for
private vehicular access, the maintenance of the block paving will
remain the responsibility of whoever maintains it now. Use of The Covert
by authorised users of the bridleway is very unlikely to cause any
damage to the current block paved surface.

Public Liability - Who will be responsible in the event of accidents
caused by users of the bridleway and/or residents of The Covert?

Officer comment: Any accidents caused by users of the bridleway
and/or residents of The Covert will be a matter between the parties
involved.




ANNEX 4 - CIA Page 125 s

COUNCIL

Community Impact Assessment: Summary

1. Name of service, policy, function or criteria being assessed:

Public Rights of Way — Proposed improvements to the rights of way network in
vicinity of Knapton

2. What are the main objectives or aims of the service/policy/function/criteria?

To make concurrent extinguishment and creation orders under sections 118 and 26
of the Highways Act 1980, to extinguish Public Footpath, Knapton No 2 and create a
new bridleway linking Main Street, Knapton to the southern end of North Field Lane,
utilising the current underpass to cross the A1237. The proposal will provide a safer
crossing of the A1237 and will form the final stage of an off-road walking, riding and
cycling route that will link Rufforth, Knapton, Acomb, Upper Poppleton and the
Northfield Lane business parks

3. Name and Job Title of person completing assessment:
Alison Newbould — Rights of Way Officer

4. Have any impacts | Community of Summary of impact:
been Identified? Identity
(Yes/No) affected:
The impact is considered to be
Yes Age; Carers of | positive/neutral. The creation of the
older and new bridleway will create a safer and
disabled people; | more accessible route linking Knapton
Disability; with North Field Lane utilising the
Pregnancy and | existing underpass to cross the
maternity A1237, rather than the current at grade

crossing of the existing public
footpath and/or the pedestrian refuge
at the junction with Main Street and
the A1237, to those Community of
ldentity groups affected. The proposal
will:

e Create a new public bridleway
with a permanent and more
accessible surface than the
existing public footpath which
has a natural surface.



Page 126

e See asafer and more convenient
crossing of the A1237
(underpass) than the current at
grade crossings available
making it more convenient for all

users.

5. Date CIA completed: 14/08/18

6. Signed off by:

7. | am satisfied that this service/policy/function has been successfully impact
assessed.

Name:

Position:

Date:

8. Decision-making body: Date: Decision Details:
Decision Session — Executive

Member for Transport and 13 September

Planning 2018

Send the completed signed off document to ciasubmission@york.gov.uk It will
be published on the intranet, as well as on the council website.

Actions arising from the Assessments will be logged on Verto and progress
updates will be required



mailto:ciasubmission@york.gov.uk

4!;‘{; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Vs,

Community Impact Assessment (CIA)

Public Rights of Way — Proposed improvements to the rights of way network in

Community Impact Assessment Title: vicinity of Knapton

What evidence is available to suggest that the proposed service, policy, function or criteria could have a negative (N),
positive (P) or no (None) effect on quality of life outcomes? (Refer to guidance for further details)

Can negative impacts be justified? For example: improving community cohesion; complying with other legislation or
enforcement duties; taking positive action to address imbalances or under-representation; needing to target a

particular community or group e.g. older people. NB. Lack of financial resources alone is NOT justification!
Community of Identity: Age
Customer Staff
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators Impact Impact

(N/P/None) (N/P/None)

/2T abed

Public rights of way officers, as an important part of | Access to Services; Health;
their work, are required to be aware of the need for Productive and valued activities;
paths to be made as accessible as possible, having | Individual, family and social life
regard to the effect that their location and physical
environment is likely to have on their potential use.

Extensive consultation with the public and user groups
including those representing older people and people
with mobility problems (including wheelchair and

Positive Positive




buggy users) was carried out to inform the council’s
Draft Rights of Way Improvement Plan, a requirement
of which was to have specific regard to the
accessibility of local rights of way to blind or partially
sighted persons and those with mobility problems.
Responses showed that there is a significant demand
for paths to be made more accessible.

In this case, the planned creation of a new bridleway
linking Knapton with North Fields Lane and Moor Lane
bridleway, utilising an existing underpass, will provide
a safer crossing of the A1237 than the existing public
footpath (at grade) or use of the central pedestrian
refuge at the junction with Main Street Knapton with
the A1237.

The dual surface of the new bridleway will be more
commodious for all users of the path being level
tarmac/crushed stone surface.

82T abed

Can
negative
impacts be
justified?

Details of Impact

Reason/Action

Lead Officer

Completion
Date

Positive: On completion the proposed N/A
new route will have a dual surface of
tarmac adjacent to a level crushed stone
surface. The new path will be a total of 4
metres wide and will utilise the current

None required

A Newbould




underpass to cross the A1237. In total
the new bridleway will provide a more
accessible route for all users from
Knapton to North Fields Lane, than the
current public footpath at grade crossing
of the A1237 and the pedestrian refuge
crossing at the junction of Main Street,
Knapton with the A1237.

Negative: None

Community of Identity: Carers of Older or Disabled People

Customer Impact

Staff Impact

Evi . Li .
vidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None) g-?
As above. Access to Services; Longevity; (c%
Health; Productive and valued . . =
L T . : Positive Positive N
activities; Individual, family and social ©
life
Can negative Combpletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. g Date
justified?
Positive: As above N/A None required A Newbould

The proposed creation of the new
bridleway would make the path more
accessible to a wider range of users
including Carers of Older or Disable




People who may be accompanying other
users of the path.

Negative: None

Community of Identity: Disability

Customer Impact

Staff Impact

Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
As above Access to Services; Health;
Productive and valued activities; Positive Positive
Individual, family and social life g'?
Can c(%
Details of Impact .negatlve Reason/Action Lead Officer Completion 0
impacts be Date S
justified?
Positive: The surface of the new path N/A None required A Newbould

will be more commodious than the current
footpath which is has a natural surface.
The crossing of the A1237 will be safer
and more accessible to all users.

Negative: None




Community of Identity: Gender
: . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
Not applicable Not applicable None None
Can negative Completion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. en Date
justified?
There is not expected to be either a None required
positive or negative impact on this
community of identity group.
. . . ﬂ
Community of Identity: Gender Reassignment &
)
. . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None) F—\o
Not applicable Not applicable None None
Can negative Combpletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. en Date
justified?

There is not expected to be either a
positive or negative impact on this
community of identity group.

None required




Community of Identity: Marriage & Civil Partnership
: . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
Not applicable Not applicable None None
Can negative Combletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. g Date
justified?
There is not expected to be either a None required
positive or negative impact on this
community of identity group. -
o)
Q
Community of Identity: Pregnancy / Maternity 2
)
. . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact N>
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
As above Access to Services; Health;
Productive and valued activities; Positive Positive
Individual, family and social life
Can negative Combletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. e Date
justified?
There is not expected to be either a None required
positive or negative impact on this N/A A Newbould

community of identity group.




Community of Identity: Race
. . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
Not applicable Not applicable None None
Can negative Combletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
e Date
justified?
There is not expected to be either a None required
positive or negative impact on this
community of identity group.
=
Q
Community of Identity: Religion / Spirituality / Belief @
|_\
. . . . Customer Impact| Staff Impact w
Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None) w
Not applicable Not applicable
PP PP None None
Can negative Combletion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer P
. en Date
justified?

There is not expected to be either a
positive or negative impact on this
community of identity group.

None required




Community of Identity: Sexual Orientation

Customer Impact

Staff Impact

Evidence Quality of Life Indicators (N/P/None) (N/P/None)
Not applicable Not applicable None None
Can negative Completion
Details of Impact impacts be Reason/Action Lead Officer Dat
justified? ate
There is not expected to be either a None required
positive or negative impact on this N/A

community of identity group.

y£T abed



Page 135

ANNEX 5

456000

——

IIIII

P

Rural West
York Ward

Sold by CYC

-
[ o
)

o et & =
g = 2w 8
5 ﬁ = \\@)‘r-v 5
— S \ | =
456000
PSS city oF .
YORK Annex 5: Property Map
S COUNCIL Scale 1:2,500 Drawn By: Date:
West Offices, Station Rise, York, Public Rights of Way Reference: Drawing No.

YO16GA
Telephone: 01904 551550 Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2018




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 137 Agenda Item 9

Decision Session — Executive Member for 13 September 2018
Transport and Planning

Report of the Assistant Director, Transport, Highways
and Environment

Micklegate — Changes to Traffic Regulation Order
Summary
1. To consider options for closing Micklegate Bar to Motor Vehicles.
Recommendations -
2. Itis recommended that:

e An experimental Traffic Regulation order (TRO) is introduced for a
maximum of 18 months and that if variations during the
experimental period are required the Assistant Director for
Transport, Highways and Environment be given delegated authority
to approve changes.

Reason: to determine the benefits of restricting motor vehicles in
Micklegate, allowing the local community the opportunity to experience
the changes before making representations and to enable any rapid
variations to, including abandoning, the experiment.

3. ltis recommended that:

e Option 3 (see also Annex D) is approved as the initial starting point
of the experimental TRO.

Reason: this option will have the least impact on the local community, is
the least costly to implement and will have virtually no adverse impact on
the historic street scene.

4. Itis recommended that:

e The consultation letter drop area be extended to the area shown on
the plan in Annex A and temporary signs be put in place to advise
drivers of the web address for information.



10.

Page 138

Reason: to encourage greater public participation in the consultation
process for the experiment.

Background

A motion on the potential to close Micklegate Bar was debated at Full
Council on 19 July. The objective identified was to reduce the impact of
vehicular traffic on the historic bar. The Council resolved to:

e To request Executive bring forward options for the closure of
Micklegate Bar to outbound motorised vehicles at the earliest
possible opportunity;

e That in the short to medium term Executive gives consideration to
full closure of the gateway to motorised vehicles.”

Interest has also been expressed by local businesses and Ward members
on a number of occasions for measures to be taken to reduce through
traffic along Micklegate. Specifically, the suggestions have been to
prohibit outbound traffic at the Bar.

Although the Bar was closed for works last year with little adverse
comment this could be due to acceptance for the need for a closure to
allow the works to take place rather than support for a permanent closure.

Both outbound and full closures were in place during the works. The
impact of the closure on traffic movements was monitored during the
closure for the works.

There are currently approximately 4,300 trips through Micklegate Bar in a
12 hr period between 07:00 — 19:00. These are split roughly 60% : 40%
inbound : outbound. Out of these 4,300 trips 25% of them are made by
cyclists. As such, there are approximately 3,200 motor vehicle trips per
12 hour period through the bar.

The following motorised vehicle hourly traffic flows were observed in
Micklegate under the current arrangement:

Micklegate j/w George

Micklegate Bar Junction Hudson Street

AM PM AM PM
Inbound to
Micklegate 235 162 64 75
Outbound to 81 127 136 142
Micklegate
Total 316 289 200 217




Page 139

11. The surveys indicate that the level of motor vehicle traffic is relatively low
on Micklegate.

12. It also suggests that significant levels of traffic use the Micklegate area as
a “destination” given the drop traffic between Micklegate Bar and
Micklegate / George Hudson Street under the current arrangement.

Full Closure

13. The following motorised vehicle hourly traffic flows were observed in
Micklegate under the full closure arrangement

: : Micklegate j/w George
Micklegate Bar Junction Hudson Street
AM PM AM PM

Inbound to
Micklegate 0 0 0 0
Outbound to
Micklegate 29 43

Total 0 0 29 43

Inbound Only (Outbound Closure)

14. The following motorised vehicle hourly traffic flows were observed in
Micklegate under the In Only arrangement

: : Micklegate j/w George
Micklegate Bar Junction Hudson Street
AM PM AM PM

Inbound to
Micklegate 189 118 0 0
Outbound to
Micklegate 0 0 115 105

Total 189 118 115 105

15. During both closure periods a road closure was in place for entering
Micklegate at the junction of George Hudson Street / Micklegate. Hence
why no inbound trips are seen on Micklegate in the figures at this junction.

16. Under both options traffic flows drop significantly on Micklegate. The
outbound closure on Micklegate still results in a reduction of traffic down
the hill towards Ouse Bridge by approx. 20% from the existing. This is
likely due to drivers making “in” and “out” journeys by the same route.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Page 140

Changes to traffic flow on the wider highway network are likely to occur
due to the restrictions to motor vehicles at Micklegate Bar. Micklegate
residents and business traffic will likely use alternative residential and
minor roads to access the primary highway network once their option to
use Micklegate Bar is restricted. However, these increases are likely to
be small in size.

Inbound Only (Outbound Closure) — The impacts of the outbound closure
of Micklegate Bar would see low levels of traffic redistributed onto
alternative routes on the main highway network. Many of the redistributed
trips will still use the Micklegate Bar junction but instead of coming from
Micklegate will reroute using the Inner Ring Road. It is also likely that
Bishopthorpe Road will see a small increase in trips as traffic uses
Bishopthorpe Road itself, or Bishopthorpe Road / Scarcroft Road to travel
round the city. Traffic is likely to reduce on Tower Street, Ouse Bridge
and Blossom Street due to restrictions at Micklegate Bar.

It should be noted that significant work is planned on the Inner Ring Road
at Queen Street over the next few years as part of the station frontage
scheme. Changes to the traffic restrictions through Micklegate Bar could
increase the traffic levels and potentially delays on the Inner Ring Road
during the works.

Micklegate is an important cross town route for pedal cycles as it allows
cyclists to avoid sections of the busy inner ring road, hence the options
put forward allow for the continued use of Micklegate outbound by
cyclists.

There are a number of ways to limit the use of the street outbound that
will have varying impact on the local community. These are outlined in the
options below. It is expected that there will be different views expressed
from businesses, residents and residents of the wider local community
who currently make use of Micklegate to access their properties in the
streets off Micklegate. To enable residents and businesses to experience
the options to better aid any representations that they may wish to make
an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (see consultation section below
for more details) is consider appropriate.

It should be noted that although the volume of traffic exiting the city via
Micklegate Bar can reasonably be expected to drop there is no scope to
adjust the signal timings on the outbound lane due to it already being set
at the minimum green time and this will continue to be needed to cater for
cyclists. Hence there would be no increase in green time available to any
of the other arms of the junction.



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Page 141

Consultation

The usual method of implementing a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is to
advertise proposals for a period of three weeks to allow people
opportunity to express their views on the proposals. If any objections are
made they have to be considered and if overturned the TRO can then be
implemented on a permanent basis.

A TRO can be introduced on an experimental basis for a maximum of 18
months. This method is typically used when there is a degree of
uncertainty on the outcome of the proposal and the process allows for a
rapid change to, or abandoning of, the proposals to try to overcome any
difficulties experienced. By using this route, users of the street are able to
fully experience the proposals and the effects it has on them that can then
be used to better inform any representation they choose to make, either in
favour of or against the measures. Before an Experimental TRO can be
made permanent the scheme has to be in place for a minimum of 6
months unchanged and objections considered. Hence, no changes other
than ending the experiment can be made after 12 months of operation.

Normally we would add to the consultation requirements of the TRO
process by delivering letters to the properties immediately adjacent to the
proposals. However in this case it is suggested that the letter drop be
extended to cover the side streets (see Annex A). In addition temporary
signs be put in place with a web page address to inform drivers of the
experiment and how to make representation.

Options

Option 1 — introduce a plug No entry except for pedal cycles restriction at
the George Hudson street junction. This would have the effect of
removing through traffic from the Ouse Bridge direction but retain a two
way flow within the street and Micklegate Bar. This has the benefit of
requiring virtually no regulatory signing which reduces costs and the
visual impact on the historic street scene. See plan in Annex B and
indication of signing works required.

Option 2 — as above, but also install a prohibition at the Bar that allows
cycles through to the traffic lights but forces motor vehicles to exit the
area via Bar Lane/Toft Green or via Priory Street. See plan in Annex C
and indication of signing works required.

Option 3 — introduce a plug No entry except for pedal cycles restriction at
the Micklegate Bar only. This would permit access to Micklegate from the
George Hudson street junction which would address concerns about



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Page 142

access raised by some residents and businesses during the closure for
the works. See plan in Annex D.

Option 4 — take no action. This is not a recommended option.
Discussion

It is suggested that if approved to take forward as an Experimental TRO
Option 3 should be the starting point.

Depending on how the Experimental TRO progresses there may be other
options or variations that might be considered viable. If changes to the
Experimental TRO are thought desirable these can be discussed between
Officers and the Executive Member for Transport and an amendment
made to the Experimental TRO and measures on street.

Council Plan
The above proposal contributes to the City Council’s draft Council Plan of:
e A prosperous city for all,
e A council that listens to residents
Implications
This report has the following implications:
Financial — None at this stage.
Human Resources — None.
Equalities — None.
Legal — None.
Crime and Disorder — None
Information Technology - None
Land — None
Other — None

Risk Management — None



Page 143

Contact Details

Authors: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Alistair Briggs Neil Ferris

Traffic Team Leader Corporate Director of Economy and Place
Dept. Transport

Tel: (01904) 551368 Approved: v Date: 27/7/2018
Specialist Implications Officer(s)

None.

Wards Affected: Micklegate Al [ ]

For further information please contact the author of the report.
Background Papers: None.

Annexes:

Annex A Plan of extended consultation letter drop area

Annex B Plan showing Option 1 and photos of where signing works needed
Annex C Plan showing Option 2 and photos of where signing works needed

Annex D Plan showing Option 3 and photos of where signing works needed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 145

Annex A

Plan of extended consultation letter drop area




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147

Annex B

Plan showing Option 1 and photos of where signing works needed




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149

Annex C

Plan showing Option 2 and photos of where signing works needed

Plug No Entry at George Hudson Street and Bar Closed to Motor
Vehicles

/ WS ‘3‘."
N XTI

£

= No entry except for cycles L7 AN N \ >?
y eXCEp: Tor LY < AV SN

plus bollard blo the arch




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151

Annex D
Plan showing Option 3 and photos of where signing works needed

~ Plug No Entry at\MigkIegat_e Bar'CIo‘g,\ed‘t_o‘ Motor Vehicles Exitilng the City
R 7 N N

g e
. '| EI .
-~ L] ¢ 'l

N, : ~s~:\-\‘:\ )
No entry except for cycles
plus bollard below the arch




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Thoresby Road – Speed Management Scheme
	Annex A - Option 1 – signing and lining scheme
	Sheets and Views
	HC A3L bottom


	Annex B - Option 2 - traffic calming scheme
	Sheets and Views
	HC A3L bottom



	5 York Outer Ring Road Improvements - Proposed A1237 Monks Cross Junction Upgrade - Report on Public Engagement
	Annex 1 - Proposed General Arrangement for Monks Cross Junction
	Annex 2 - Layout presented for public consultation
	Annex 3 - Sample consultation package
	Annex 4 - WYCA Project Assurance Process.
	Annex 5 - Press Release for public engagement process
	Annex 6 - Frequently Asked Questions
	Annex 7 - Indicative YORR Improvement Programme
	Annex 8 - Pell Frischman report

	6 Advertising Boards ("A" Boards) on the Public Highway
	Annex A - A’ Board Questionnaire: City Centre and Micklegate Survey
	Annex B - Community Impact Assessment Summary

	7 Hempland Avenue - Speed Management Scheme
	Annex A
	Sheets and Views
	HC A3L


	Annex B
	Sheets and Views
	HC A3L



	8 Public Rights of Way - Proposed improvements to the rights of way network in vicinity of Knapton
	Annex 1 - Location Plan
	Annex 2 - Proposed Order Plan
	Annex 3 - Consultation Responses
	Annex 4 - Community Impact Assessment
	Annex 5 - Property Map

	9 Micklegate - Changes to Traffic Regulation Order
	Annex A - Plan of extended consultation letter drop area
	Annex B - Plan showing Option 1 and photos of where signing works needed
	Annex C - Plan showing Option 2 and photos of where signing works needed
	Annex D - Plan showing Option 3 and photos of where signing works needed




